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KELLWOOD BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Women'’s Sportswear

Men's Sportswear

Our Mrssion

e To build on our reputation as a leading marketer
of value-oriented soft goods that satisfy a broad
spectrum of consumers.

e To expand our retail partnerships by developing
products that provide a distinctive and profitable
merchandising mix.

e To provide our associates with an environment
that encourages commitment and recognizes
excellence.

o To perform in the top quartile of our industry,
as measured by return on shareowners’ equity.

s

Other Soft Goods: Intimate Apparel & Recreation Products

ot

CoMPANY PROFILE

Kellwood Company (NYSE), headquartered in

St. Louis, Missouri, is a leading marketer of apparel
and consumer soft goods. With over 24,000 associ-
ates worldwide, the Company services the needs of
every major retailer. Specializing in branded as well
as private label products, the Company markets to
all channels of distribution from discounters to
department stores with products and brands
tailored to the specific channel.
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FinanciaL HIGHLIGHTS

Change in Year End In August 1999 the Company changed its fiscal year-end from April 30 to January 31. This page presents certain
financial information for 1999, 1998 and 1997 on an unaudited pro-forma basis, as if the Company’s year-end had been January 31
throughout this period.

YEAR ENDED JAN. 31,

2001 2000 1999 1988 1997
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) (UNAUDITED} (UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00 1/31/98 1/31/98
Net Sales $2,2818 $2,362.2 $2,193.7 $2,117.6 $2,030.7
Earnings Before Unusual Items and Income Taxes £0.3 93.0 112.1 96.3 79.9
Earnings Before Income Taxes £0.3 99.0 51.1 95.0 79.9
Net Earnings Before Unusual Items 37.7 £0.8 66.6 56.0 449
Net Earnings 37.7 60.8 10.0 55.2 449
Shares Outstanding (000):
Basic 22,761 23,624 27,458 26,632 26,674
Diluted 22,912 23,676 27,829 27,375 27,038
Basic Earnings per Share:
Earnings before unusual items $ 166 $ 257 $ 242 $ 213 $ 168
Provision for Goodwill impairment, Provision for
facilities shut-down, and Costs of Koret merger - - (2.06) (.05) -
Net earnings $ 166 $ 257 $ 36 $ 208 $ 168
Diluted Earnings per Share:
Earnings before unusual items $ 165 $ 257 $ 239 $ 207 $ 166
Provision for Goodwill impairment, Provision for
facilities shut-down, and Costs of Koret merger - - (2.03) (.05) -
Net earnings $ 165 $ 257 $ 36 $ 202 $ 166
Cash Dividends Declared $ 64 $ 64 $ .64 $ .64 $ 63
CoMMON Stock Data
YEAR ENDED JAN. 31, 2002 YEAR ENDED JAN. 31, 2001
STOCK PRICE OIVIDENDS STOCK PRICE DIVIDENDS
HIGH LOW PAID HIGH LOW PAID
Quarter ended April 30 $ 25.50 $ 1882 3 .16 $ 1850 $ 13.75 $ .16
Quarter ended July 31 23.90 20.18 .16 22.44 15.75 .16
Quarter ended October 31 23.59 17.30 16 22.25 15.12 .16
Quarter ended January 31 24.96 19.50 16 23.25 18.38 .16

Common stéck of Kellwood Company is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, ticker symbol KWD. At March 11, 2002, there were approximately 3,346 shareowners of record including
2,174 shareowners in the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.
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M O
hareowne Assoclates & Custome

To say the least, 2001 was a difficult year for all of us. Sales for the fiscal year
were $2,282 million, down $80 million, or 3 percent from $2,362 million last
year, reflecting the overall weakness of the economy last year, and especially
in the apparel industry.
e Our Women'’s Sportswear segment fell $120 million, or 7 percent,
to $1,515 million,
e Men’s Sportswear sales declined $14 million, or 4 percent,
to $348 million, and
e Sales of Other Soft Goods, which include Intimate Apparel and Recreation
Products, increased $54 million, or 15 percent.

Our net earnings for the year were $37.7 million, or $1.65 per share,
versus $60.8 million, or $2.57 per share last year on a diluted basis. In
reviewing the year-to-year decline, notice net earnings for 2001 include a
$2.1 million after tax gain from the Company’s change from LIFO to FIFO
In valuing certain inventories, which was recorded in the first quarter. Prior
fiscal year net earnings for 2000 included pension non-cash income and
gains of $8.5 million after tax. After adjusting both years for these items,
net earnings for the current fiscal year were down $16.7 million principally
as the result of lower sales.

The year was a disappointment for management as well as shareowners.
With the business climate the way it was, we thought it was not prudent to
acquire any companies last year, which might have been a major distraction.
With no new acquisitions and lagging internal growth due to the consolidation
of business units and the elimination of non-performing labels, our top line
growth slipped in 2001.
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For the first six maonths of the year, we were on
track with sales performance trending upward. But,
after July the economy began to stall. We witnessed
business across most industries slide toward an all
out recession as the result of a declining stock market
that left everyday consumers feeling less “wealthy”
with the disappearance of their disposable income.
The unfathomable devastation of September 11 pushed
an American economy over the edge and into retreat
far the remainder of the year.

In light of the aftermath of terrorist attacks and
its impact on the economy in an already recessionary
environment, we have taken a hard look at our Company
and have taken steps to adjust our business model.
To manage this uncertainty, we have implemented
aggressive tactics in terms of inventory levels, praoduc-
tion commitments, overhead spending, the elimination
of non-performing brands, and the investment in
marketing to grow our brands.

We have liquidated surplus inventory and more
importantly, cut back on the purchase of raw materials
and finished products from our contractors.

e As a result, inventory levels at the end of the “ThI’OUgh great times and tough

fiscal year were down 28 percent, or $140 million, . . L
from the level carried last year. tlmes, one constant remains a

e Total debt as of January 2002 was down $209 mil- real entrepreneurial Spil’it that gives

lion, or 38 percent, below the prior year. Kellwood's Kellwood “fe and keeps us growing.
ratio of total-debt-to-total-capital has dropped to

42 percent versus 56 percent last year. People are the lifeblood of the
e The reduction of inventory and total debt has Company and what make us a

resulted iq $69 million of cash and time deposits, COﬂtiﬂUOUS, thriving entity.”
up $59 million from last year.

T
!
1
1

o Total overhead has been reduced by approximately
$50 million, or 9 percent, on an annualized basis.

o All domestic apparel-sewing operations have been
closed and more sourcing moved o contractors in
the Far East.
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We believe these actions should enable the
Company to improve its return an capital during these
unpredictable times, and mare importantly position
Kellwoad for strong earnings growth when the economy
improves.

We are assessing our sourcing and distribution
infrastructure in order to adapt to the current state of
business worldwide. The global market for piece goods
and apparel production has changed significantly,
favoring the sourcing of both piece goods and finished
product out of the Far East. In addition, the lingering
weakness in consumer and retail demand has led to
some excess capacity in our warehousing and distribu-
tion network, which we are addressing.

MANAGEMENT CHANGES

Recognizing the importance of brand building and to
refocus our major women'’s sportswear businesses, as
well as to develop clear identities for our smaller brand
properties, we created the new position of president
Keliwood womenswear.

In November, Stephen L. Ruzow, a 30-year veteran
of the fashion industry with a strong background in
fashion marketing and brand development was named
president Kellwood womenswear.

At the March Board Meeting several officer
changes were made. Donald (Don) R. Riley and
Robert (Bob) C. Skinner were appointed corporate
vice presidents in recognition of their contributions
to Kellwood. Don joined the Company as chief informa-
tion officer in 1998, following a 13-year tenure with
EDS. Prior to joining Kellwood in 2000 as president
menswear, Bob was with Oxford Industries for 13 years
as president of their Oxford Shirt Group.
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In recognition of their efforts and commitment
to Kellwood, W. Lee Capps Il and Thomas (Tom) H.
Pallihan were elected senior vice presidents. Lee was
promoted to senior vice president finance and chief
financial officer. He joined the Kellwood family in 1987,
and most recently served as Kellwood's vice president
finance and CFO.

Tom, formerly Kellwood vice president, secretary
and general counsel, a post he has held since 1993,
added senior vice president to his current position.

After a 38-year career with Kellwood, Leon M.
McWhite, vice president human resources, retires
May 6. Over the years Leon has served in various
senior management positions with several of our
divisions, befare being appointed to his current post
in 1994. We are most appreciative of his loyal and
lengthy service, and contributions to Kellwood.

KeLiwooD TUurNS FORTY

In 2001 Kellwood commemorated its 40th year in
business. From a historical point-of-view, the Company
was founded the year the Berlin Wall went up and
celebrated its 40th anniversary in anguish as the
World Trade Center Twin Towers came down.

Navigating through tumultuous times — both
from an industry and world order perspective — we are
proud to have not only survived but to have prospered
as a company when so many others in our industry
have failed or have been acquired.

Qver the years, we have grown from being a
captive manufacturing company with primarily one
customer to a multidivisional apparel and camping
soft goods marketer offering a wide range of products
to all channels of distribution.

We have done this by focusing on value, fashion
and diversity. This is what differentiates Kellwood from
its competitors. As a Company we celebrate these
attributes, and in this report following my letter, we
profile four of our leading designers who address
these concepts.




Through great times and tough times, ane
constant remains — a real entrepreneurial spirit that
gives Kellwood life and keeps us growing. People are
the lifeblood of the Company and what make us a
continuous, thriving entity.

We view this fiscal year, just beginning, as a year
of transition, a year of rebuilding. After reading about
Marina, Stan, Mark and Mike, | believe you will have a
greater appreciation of our history and our future and
why you should invest in Kellwood.

A New FAce For KELLWOOD

[n celebration of qur 40th anniversary and evolution of
becoming who we are today, we decided fo visibly put
a fresh face on this new Kellwood.

<

KELLWOOD

Our new identity captures and comrmunicates
Kellwood and the ethos of our associates worldwide. We
believe this new identity will fortify Kellwood's position in
the marketplace and allow our divisions to capitalize an
the strengths of its parent company in dealing with their
customers. Division by division, brand by brand, we will
roll out this new look so that each division and brand
will become known as a Kellwood Company. Through
this brand architecture, the associate, the retailer, the
cansumer, and the investor will all come to understand
and appreciate the vast world of Kellwood.

A TRANSITION YEAR — 2002

We are all pleased to have 2001 behind us.
Unfortunately, the consumer and the retail apparel
environment remain uncertain. Therefore, we have
conservatively planned our sales down 10 percent
for the year. Our diversity in customer base, products,

consumers, brands and price points make us a good
barometer of the apparel/retail sector of the economy.
We know retailers are approaching 2002 with extreme
caution in order to avoid repeating past mistakes. Many
rumors loom concerning mergers and consolidations of
the remaining major department store retailing giants.

Moving forward in 2002, we are positioned to keep
our Company on a steady course, awaiting a rebound
in the economy, consumer confidence and a return to
consumer spending.

We continue to actively seek out new businesses
and acquisitions that fit with the overall strategic growth
plan for Kellwood — husinesses that would augment our
existing units or introduce us into new product categories.

Licensing opportunities continue to be an intelli-
gent way for Keliwood to expand its sales and earnings
potential. Currently, we are evaluating several licensing
programs, which would fit into each of our four platforms
for growth.

Our largest brand and company, Sag Harbor, has
been repositioned as a more fashion forward resource to
stay in touch with the ageless mindset of today's woman.
The response from retailers and consumers has been
quite favorable.

Acrass the board we are exploring more innovative
ways to reach the end consumer with cost effective,
creative marketing concepts.

We are celebrating 40 years of value, fashion and
diversity. In the following pages four of our talented
designers tell us why.

Hal J. Upbin
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Aprit 12, 2002
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KeLrwooD BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

(based on revenues)

e Women'’s Sportswear

o Men's Sportswear

OTtHER SOFT GOODS:
e Intimate Apparel
e Recreation Products

WOMEN’S SPORTSWEAR

Sixty-six percent of the Company’s revenues are derived
from Women’s Sportswear. The volume leader in the
moderately priced women’s arena, this sector also provides

better-to-bridge collections for certain niche markets.

MEN’S SPORTSWEAR
Primarily a developer of private label programs for
leading retailers, Men's Sportswear plans to expand
its 15 percent share of Kellwood sales through brand

building and licensing opportunities.




OTHER SofFT GOODS

accounts for 18 percent of the Company's sales volume.

INTIMATE APPAREL

Offering a complete line of intimates from bras and
panties to sleepwear and robes, our Intimate Apparel

sector intends to expand its branded product offerings
through major licensing initiatives.

Other Soft Goods, which is comprised of Intimate Apparel and Recreation Products,

.
1D Gt
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RECREATION PRODUCTS

With its strong position in the market place, and clearly

defined product and channel! strategies, Recreation Products

outfits family campers, backpackers, and serious mountaineers
with the gear they require.



Over the past 40 years, hundreds of talented designers and merchandisers have helped forge
the Kellwood Difference. Creativity is their passion. Developing a medley of product that captures
fashion and value for each channel of distribution — from discounter to better department store
— is the core of Kellwood's success. It all begins with product. Four of our leading designers

share their philosophy on creating product with value, fashion and diversity.

N

A rare occurrence in today's marketplace, Marina
Pappas, creative director for Sag Harbor, has designed
the brand since the company first opened its doors
26 years ago.

Marina, who immigrated to America from Greece
with her family when she was three, knew she was
destined for the fashion industry by the time she was
six. “Watching all the beautiful clothes on television for
women, | knew | wanted to design. | was mesmerized.”

After graduating from the Fashion Institute of
Technology, she had just settled into a sportswear
company when the Sag Harbor team began calling
her daily for an entire month until she agreed to join
the start-up group. Marina was their first associate.

Through her design leadership, she has seen Sag
Harbor’s fashion image change and grow from novelty
sportswear to a potpourri of challis skirts, to the
jacket behemocth of the industry, to the option
dressing of today. “It's not a uniform any
more, a woman puts her look together
differently now. She’s in charge.

“As far as value goes, the
customer knows when a garment
is well made for her tier of what
she can afford. She looks at
better-priced, more expensive
lines but can't afford them.
Even though it's a challenge,
we do develop fabrics that are

-
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|; 40 Years

inexpensive. We push the fabric people to give us the

best value in fabric. Many times it is the same material
as the fabric found in befter-priced lines. We start with
beautiful piece goods.

“Fit comes next. We are very specific when it comes
to fit. It has to be right. We fit the garment on large,
missy, and petite maodels together so we can achieve
uniformity in style and look, and assure that the meas-
urements are correct for each body type. We are careful
about the fit as well as how the garments are made.
Just because something is inexpensive doesn’t mean
it has to be unattractive, ill-fitting and ‘fall-apart’ cheap.

“The woman today has changed dramatically. She
does not want to look like her mother. She is going to
look great as long as she can. This is the biggest change
in fashion in the missy moderate market — dressing the
ageless, timeless, contemporary-minded woman.

“We are very focused on what our customer
wants. She’s changed and we have to change with
her and give her what she wants and needs. This is
the most diversified related sportswear line we've ever
offered. Sweaters, blouses. It's not just about the jacket

anymore. Easy sportswear dresses. Cropped pants, flat
front or pleated pants. It's her decision. She doesn't
want one look. She wants to look the way she wants
to look on that particular day.
“We are changing with our customer to meet
her needs. Value. Fashion. Diversity. That's why
everyone knows our name. Sag Harbor.”

BEAUTIFUL FABRICS.
One way Sag Harbor
adds value. This 100 per-
cent boiled wool long
sweater coat will go out
the door retail at $60.




“It’s not just one particular look. That is what’s great about Sag Harbor.

Our customer can put herself together in so many different ways. Dress the way
she wants to on a particular day depending on her mood. It’s the long skirt, the slim
skirt, the short — or the full skirt. It’s how she puts it together. Women like that.
The truth is — it’s more fun to give ber options. I think that's what makes

her buy clothes. Fashion is beautiful right now.”

MARINA PAPPAS
CREATIVE DIRECTOR
SAG HARBOR




“Value is a hard word to define. It’s not just about the price. It is how
she feels about the clothes. If you can touch a customer, and she can say to you
‘I just wear that robe to death’, to me that's value. If a woman is really involved with
what she is wearing, that's value. It can be expensive, but it can still be value.

If she paid a lot for it, and she bas worn it ten years, that's value.’
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STAN HERMAN

DESIGNER



Value.

A designer who has seen his share of decades, Stan
Herman has had the good fortune and ability to have
designed a wide range of products from bras and girdles
to sportswear, dresses and uniforms to sleepwear and
loungewear, Not many people can do that. "l went to
college at the University of Cincinnati and enrolled in
a small design class. After five minutes, | knew this
was where | wanted to be."

Stan started working in the industry at the age
of 12 in his father’s fabric stores. "1 used to man the
Bemberg sheer rayon counter, remember that? The
ladies would come in to buy these sheer rayon, ditsy
prints and say, ‘Oh Mr. Herman, you are so young,
but what should | wear under this fabric, it's so sheer?
To which | would reply, nothing.”

From there, he designed the little dress that
Ali MacGraw wore to get married in, as Jenny Cavilleri
in “Love Story” He then had a love story of his own
with chenille, and for the last 16 years he has been
known as the designer of chenille robes for Kellwood's
Crowntuft division — as well as a myriad of ather
successiul ventures in the apparel industry.

“Concerning value, my whole career has been
based on the fact that | believe in value. | do not
believe a woman'’s clothing should break the bank.
Clothing should be part of life, not your life.

“Buying a robe is

a purchase of love. A
woman is buying it for
herself, to wear intimately.
No one except her closest
friend is going to see her in
it. She lives with the item
everyday. A designer needs
to think in those terms.”

“When | owned my own company, Mr. Mort, in the
60's and 70’s, | had a sign over my desk ‘If this dress
doesn’t logk twice the actual price that you can get from
the store, don't put it into work.” That's how all my assis-
tants worked with me — building value into the design.
“There is a technique to making clothes look more
expensive, by using colors, fabrics, and looks that are
more classic. There is no restriction on value. Value
doesn’'t mean clothes have to be any less fashionable
or any less exciting or durable. | think it's a badge of
honor to design with value in mind.
“| was very lucky to have apprenticed on
7th Avenue for some of the major design companies
over an eight-year period where | really learned the
art of designing clothes that were both aesthetically
pleasing and commercially viable.
“The customer is very smart. She knows what
she wants and doesn’t buy only the name,
even mine. She buys because it's good
design and value. One hopes she buys
it from me.”
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Fashion.

Caming from a background in design and merchandis-
ing at Joseph Abboud, Calvin Klein, and Perry Ellis,
Mark Alden Lukas believes fashion can be delivered at
every price point in good taste, if you keep your focus
and are creative,

Introduced to the sartorial world at 16, Mark knew
he had found his calling in men’s fashion. As a young
Pennsylvanian, he garnered Old World experience in a
tailor shop working with fine lines of men’s clothing.
Learning the intricacies of excellent fit, by the age of
18 he carried his own book of carriage trade business.

Blending his love of bath work and education,
Mark continued to burnish his career in men’s furnish-
ings on a full time basis while completing his formal
training at The Philadelphia College of Textiles and

Science, the best traditional textile schaal in the country.

“My philosophy is pleasing the customer first.
Finding out what that customer wants. Not telling the
customer what he should wear.

“What is the state of fashion today? First of all,
there is not one big trend anymore. This
is a big paradigm shift for our industry.
Streetwear and the consumer dictate
to the manufacturer what is fashion.
The manufacturer had better listen
to this dialogue and internalize it to
succeed in the future.

“You must have good
design and an awareness of
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the consumer’s needs, and be willing to execute it. |
have shopped the stores and have front line experience.
| know what happens when you leave the New York
market place. Everything changes. To create fashion,
one has to have sensitivity for all channels of distribu-
tion and know how to get to the next level. You can
apply any idea or concept to any price point as long as
you keep focused on what you are trying to achieve.

“At Kellwood, with private label we are providing
the retailer with an alternative to the megabrands that
the consumer finds at all major venues. We offer the
retailer exclusivity in their product merchandising.

Our programs are based on solid ideas that excite
consumers and retailers.

“We need to give retailers what works for them
and the end consumer, and must do it better than the
store can. This needs to be driven from a partnership.

“We provide a complete, fully executed program
from concept — color point of view, silhouette develop-
ment, fabrication, label design, marketing ideas, pack-
aging — to timely delivery of floor ready product for a
strong on floor performance.”

Mark lives his life seamlessly. His creative endeavors
nermeate his existence. Whether restoring a histaric
Victorian home, collecting art and antiques, or traveling
to other cities and cultures, these combined experiences

define and inspire him. “Being immersed in life, | am
able to draw conclusions, refine ideas, and pinpoint
what the latest new concept should be.”

FOCUS.

What does the
product need to be?
Consider the price
point, channel
distribution and
consumer’s lifestyle.
Shirt on model
developed by

Menswear.




“As the creative director of the menswear team, 1 think of myself as a creative
seller, a builder of programs. I draw people together to collaborate, gather their strengths.
This is not work. I give myself away everyday. Put it all out there and you get it back.

I believe in holding people to their highest potential.”

MARK ALDEN LUKAS
CREATIVE DIRECTOR
MENSWEAR




“Backpacking and skiing are wonderful inspiration for generating innovative concepts.
I have made a point of skiing at least once a month for the past 16 years.
I always return with new ideas... It’s good for the mind.”

MIKE SCHERER
DESIGNER
KELTY




Diversity.

To improve the functionality and quality of his pack,
Mike Scherer, a Kelty product designer for over 15 years,
started designing his own backpacking gear in his teens.
The oldest of five brothers, and son of a homemaker-
turned-attorney and a genome seguencing research
chemist, Mike grew up backpacking the Sierra Nevadas
in California.

In making his own gear, Mike bought fabric, drew
lines, and cut out his designs. He used no pattern. His
mother taught him basic sewing skills on a household
machine that suffered through a myriad of snapped
needles and ruined timing from stitching multiple layers
of tough outdoor fabric. He would buy an existing pack
" to get the frame, then he would redesign it his way.

During college Mike started to work at a moun-
taineering shop and continued with the store after earn-
ing his bachelor's degree in physics at Berkeley. While
perfecting the designs of backpacks and tents at the
small specialty store, he caught the eye of Sierra Design
management. Realizing his understanding of balancing
forces in tent design, Sierra Designs hired him.

Mike has been able to use his expertise in applied
technology design in many product areas — tents
and sleeping bags — as well as backpacks.

Mike is annoyed by the lack of technically

correct designs turned out by some
companies — those who design for
style only for the outdoor ‘wannabes’,
instead of function, for the actual doers,

“I believe it's possible to design for style and
function. Our tents visually look like what they do.
Everything is functional yet with a striking look. For
instance our vaulted sleeve and our Webforce™ designs
are visually similar to aircraft superstructures. They
accomplish similar functions with similar low-weight
priorities. The technical features make the tent into
a unitized self-reinforcing structure.”

With sleeping bags, the technological differences
are not always so apparent. Mike holds the patent for
a bag with a classic exterior look and stretch interior
tricot design that gently packs the fill against the body
S0 the bag doesn't feel small.

“I'm always scanning various publications to exploit
new ideas. In a NASA tech brief, | read about Spectra, a
thin new ultra-high strength material. In 1990 we made
a pack out of it — a blinding white, beyond state of the
art pack that still hasn't been touched — or should | say
no one will go to the trouble to make it. In many cases,
we are our own fabric converters because no one else
wants to do it.

“Technology allows us to create new uses for
materials that expand product distribution and product

diversity. | am always looking for new ways we can
be innovative with materials that already exist.
It's about finding a new way to use what we
already have — plastics, metals, fabrics.”

Recreation Products is
known for its product
and channel diversity —
and developing a clearly
defined channel strategy
for each of its brands.
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Reports of Management and Independent Accountants

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The management of Kellwood Company is responsible for the

fair presentation of the financial statements and ather financial
information included in this report. The financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles applying estimates and management’s best judgments
as required to present fairly Kellwood Company’s financial position,
results of operations and cash flows.

The accounting systems and internal accounting controls
of Kellwood are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
{he financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements
and maintaining accountability for assets and that, in all material
respects, assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition. Qualified personnel throughout the organization
maintain and monitor these internal accounting controls on an
ongoing basis, and internal auditors systematically review the ade-
quacy and effectiveness of the controls. PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP also studies and evatuates internal controls for the purpose
of establishing a basis for reliance thereon relative to the scope
of their audits of the financial statements. It is management's
opinion that the Company has an effective system of internat
accounting controls.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consist-
ing solely of non-management directors, meets periodically with
management, the internal auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP to discuss audit and financial reporting matters. Both the
internal auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have direct
access to the Audit Committee.

Hal J. Upbin
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

W. Lee Capps, I}l
Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareowners and Board of Directors of Kellwood Company:

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated balance sheets
and the related consclidated statements of earnings, of cash flows
and of shareowners’ equity present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Kellwood Company and its subsidiaries at
January 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the years ended January 31, 2002 and
2001 and for the nine months ended January 31, 2000, in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Kellwood's management; our responsibilify isto
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence suppoarting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the averall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis far our opinion.

?WA&W LL?

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
March 7, 2002




Consolidated Statement of Earnings

FISCAL 2001 FISCAL 2000 TRANSITION PERIOD
(YEAR ENDED (YEAR ENDED (NINE MONTHS ENDED
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) JANUARY 31, 2002) JANUARY 31, 2001} JANUARY 31, 2000)
Net Sales $2,281,763 $2,362,174 $1,565,261
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of products sold 1,823,639 1,881,033 1,237:683
Selling, general and administrative expenses 354,786 352,968 238,672
Pension income and plan termination - (13,224) (4,326)
Amortization of intangible assets 9,383 8,279 4,865
Interest expense 34,823 32,622 22,654
Interest (income) and other, net (1,198) 1,633 (2,887)
Earnings Before income Taxes 60,330 98,963 68,600
Income Taxes 22,600 38,200 27,600
Net Earnings $ 37,730 $ 60,763 $ 41,000
Earnings Per Share:
Basic $ 1.66 $ 257 $ 1.49
Diluted $ 1.65 $ 2.57 $ 1.48

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

AS GF JANUARY 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2002 2001
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash, including time deposits of $42,361 ($3,771 in 2001) $ 69,239 $ 10,437
Receivables, net 318,931 364,522
[nventaries, net 363,486 503,164
Prepaid taxes and expenses 31,325 29,017
Total Current Assets 782,981 807,140
Property, Plant and Equipment 277,156 269,066
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (168,218) (154,568)
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 108,938 114,498
Intangible Assets, net 116,546 127,793
Other Assets 35,858 116,294
Total Assets $1,044 424 $1,265,725

LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt $ 18811 $ 13812
Notes payable 7,612 117,702
Accounts payable 137,808 154,617
Accrued expenses 78,822 76,370
Total Current Liabilities 243,153 362,501
Long-Term Debt 307,869 411,331
Deferred Income Taxes and Other 36,703 ©0,797

Shareowners’ Equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized,

22,908,334 shares issued and outstanding (22,690,576 in 2001) 173,010 168,171
Retained earnings 429,767 406,607
Accumulated other comprehensive income (11,878) (10,572)

590,899 564,206

Less treasury stock, at cost (134,200) (133,110)
Total Shareowners’ Equity 456,699 431,096
Totat Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity $1,044,424 $1,265,725

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consoclidated Statement of Cash Flows

FISCAL 2001 FISCAL 2000 TRANSITION PERIOD
(YEAR ENDED (YEAR ENDED (NINE MONTHS ENDED
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) JANUARY 31, 2002) JANUARY 31, 2001) JANUARY 31, 2000)
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings $ 37,730 $ 60,763 $ 41,000
Add (deduct) items not affecting operating cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 32,418 27,297 19,106
Pension income and termination gain - (13,224) (4,326)
Deferred income taxes and other 7,314 1,287 6,746
Changes in working capital components:
Receivables, net 50,323 (10,694) 72,475
Inventories 140,691 (72,560) (36,139)
Prepaid expenses 2,452 19,880 (9,188)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (11,909) (25,509) 6,527
Net cash provided by/(used for) operating activities 259,020 (12,750) 96,201
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (19,133) (27,694) (22,819)
Termination of defined benefit pension plan, net of taxes 41,101 - -
Acquisitions (3,802) (112,610) (28,983)
Dispositions of fixed assets 980 2,042 7,225
Other investing activities - - (115}
Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities 19,156 (138,262) (44,692)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from notes payable 1428,844 1,447,692 337,472
Reduction of notes payable (1,538,934) (1,253,914) (431,727)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - - 149,207
Reduction of long-term debt (98,463) (12,487) (35,899)
Stock transactions under incentive plans 3,749 1,551 1,971
Purchase of treasury stock - (60,738) (30,174}
Dividends paid (14,570) (15,156) (13,340)
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing activities (219,374) 106,948 (22,480)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and time deposits 58,802 (44,064) 29,019
Cash and time deposits — beginning of year 10,437 54,501 25,482
Cash and time deposits — end of year $ 69,239 $ 10437 $ 54,501
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 35,742 $ 32,186 $ 20422
Income taxes paid 47,186 13,513 37,108

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Shareowners’ Equity

ACCUMULATED
TREASURY OTHER TOTAL
COMMON STOCK STOCK RETAINED ~ COMPREHENSIVE ~ COMPREHENSIVE
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT EARNINGS INCOME INCOME
BALANCE, APRIL 30, 1999 27,737,032 $163,097 $ (40,919) $333,340 $ (9,330)
Net sarnings 41,000 $41,000
Other comprehensive income (48) (48)
Comprehensive income $40,952
Cash dividends declared, $.48 per share (13,340)
Shares issued under stock plans 121,933 2,942 197
Treasury stock acquired in conjunction
with incentive plans (52,696) (1,168)
Purchase of treasury stock (1,676,307) (30,174)
Debentures converted 43256 273
BALANCE, JANUARY 3T, 2000 26,173,218 $166,312 $ (72,064) $361,000 $ (9,378)
Net earnings 60,763 $60,763
Other comprehensive income (1,194) (1,194)
Comprehensive income $595_69
Cash dividends declared, $.64 per share (15,156)
Shares issued under stock plans 141,639 1,859 283
Treasury stock acquired in conjunction
with incentive plans (31,549) (591)
Purchase of treasury stock (3,592,732) (60,738)
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2001 22,690,576 $168,171 $(133,110) $406,607 $(10,572)
Net earnings 37,730 $37,730
Cther comprehensive income (1,3086) (1,306)
Camprehensive income $36,424
Cash dividends declared, $.64 per share (14,570)
Shares issued under stock plans 257,836 4 839 204
Treasury stock acquired in conjunction
with incentive plans (40,078) (1,294)
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2002 22,908,334 $173,010 $(134,200) $423,767 $(11,878)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and all majority-owned subsidiaries. Substantially
all foreign subsidiaries are consolidated based upon a fiscal year
ending December 31. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Change in Year End

In August 1999 the Company changed its fiscal year-end from
April 30 to January 31. This change resulted in a short fiscal year
covering the nine month transition period from May 1, 1899 to
January 31, 2000. References to the Company’s fiscal periods
represent the following:

FISCAL PERIOD REPRESENTS

Fiscal 2001 or “2001"
Fiscal 2000 or "2000"
The Transition Period

the year ended January 31, 2002
the year ended January 31, 2001
the nine months ended January 31, 2000

Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires that management make
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may
differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Inventories and Revenue Recognition

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. As discussed in
Note 14, in the first quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company changed
its method of determining cost for certain domestic inventories
(representing approximately 23% of inventories) from last-in,
first-out (LIFO) to FIFO.

Sales are recognized when goods are shipped. Sales discounts,
returns and allowances are included in net sales, and the provision
for doubtful accounts is included in selling, general and adminis-
trative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Certain domestic
facilities are leased under long-term capital leases which are
recorded at the beginning of the lease term at the present value
of the minimum lease payments.

Depreciation is computed generally on the declining balance
method over estimated useful lives of 15 to 40 years for buildings
and of 3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold
improvements are amortized principally on the straight-line basis
over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the remaining
lease term. Capitalized software is amortized on the straight-line
basis over the estimated economic useful life of the software,
generally two to seven years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The excess costs over net tangible assets of businesses acquired
are recarded as goodwill and other intangible assets. Through
January 31, 2002 these intangibles were amortized using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which
ranged from 1 to 20 years. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other
intangible Assets, goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible
assets will not be amortized in fiscal 2002 or following years,

but these assets will be reviewed for impairment at least annually.
See Note 2, New Accounting Standards for more information on
FAS 142 and accounting for goodwill.

Impairment Of Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, goodwill and other
intangibles to assess recoverability from future operations using
expected undiscounted future cash flows whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable. Impairment losses are recognized in operating
results when expected undiscounted future cash flows are

less than the carrying value of the asset.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are based upon income for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred income taxes are recognized for the effect
of temporary differences between financial and tax reporting in
accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 108,

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency financial statements are translated into United
States dollars using period-end rates of exchange for assets and
liabilities and monthly average rates of exchange for income and
expenses. Adjustments resulting from translation are accumulated
in the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income component of
Shareowners' Equity. Gains or losses from foreign currency trans-
actions are included in income in the period in which they occur.
The net foreign currency gains and losses recognized in 2001,
2000, and the Transition Period were not significant.

KELLWOOD COMPANY PAGE 21




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA}

Stock-based Compensation

The Company uses the intrinsic value method for measuring
stock-based compensation cost. Under this methad, compensatian
cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of Kellwood's
common stock at the grant date over the amount the employee
must pay for the stock. Kellwood’s palicy is to grant stock options
at fair market value at the date of grant.

Cash Flows

All highly liguid short-term time deposits with maturities of three
months or less maintained under cash management activities
are considered cash equivalents. The effect of foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations on cash and time depaosits was not
significant for fiscal 2001, 2000, or the Transition Period.

Fair Value Disclosure of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, investments,
short-term receivables and payables, and debt. Based on guoted
market prices obtained through independent pricing sources for
the same or similar types of borrowing arrangements, the Company
believes the major components of its long-term debt have a market
value of approximately $341,000 which compares to their book
value of $326,000. Management believes that the current carrying
amounts for the Company’s other financial instruments approximate
fair market value.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the prior years’ financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FAS 133 In February 2001 the Company adopted SFAS 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended. The Company pericdically enters into forward currency
exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign currency fluc-
tuations for purchases of certain inventories and sales of certain
products. Derivatives used by the Company have an initial term of
less than one year. Company palicy allows for the use of derivatives
only for identifiable exposures, and therefore, the Company does
not enter into derivative instruments for trading purposes where
the objective is to generate profits. Management expects these
derivatives to be highly effective in hedging the intended foreign
currency fluctuation risks. As of January 31, 2002 the Company’s
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derivatives have been designated as hedges of variable cash flows
of forecasted transactions. As such, the fair values of the derivatives
have been recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, with the
offset recorded in Other Comprehensive Income. The fair value

of these derivatives on the date of adoption of SFAS 133 and on
January 31, 2002 was not material. The fair value of these deriva-
tives will be recorded in earnings as the forecasted transactions
take place between February 2002 and December 2002,

FAS 141 & 142 In July 2001 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 141, Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible
assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized
but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with
the new Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be
amortized over thelr useful lives.

The Company will apply the new rules of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter
of 2002. During 2002, the Company will perform the reguired
impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
as recorded on February 1, 2002. The Company has not yet
determined what the effect of these tests will be, if any, on its
earnings and financial position. Any impairment resulting from
the initial application of the Statements will be recorded as a
cumulative effect of accounting change as of February 1, 2002.

Had FAS 142 been effective for 2001, application of the non-
amortization provisions of the Statement would have increased the
Company’s reported diluted earnings per share by approximately
$.25 for that year.

FAS 143 In June 2001 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirernent Obligations. This state-
ment is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002,
The Company expects that this standard will not have a material
impact on consolidated financial position, results of cperations or
cash flows.

FAS 144 In July 2001 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 144, Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assefs which

is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.
The Company expects that this standard will not have a material
impact on consalidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

3. BusiNESS COMBINATIONS

Fiscal 2000 During fiscal 2000 the Company completed four
acquisitions: Dorby Frocks, Ltd., Romance du Jour, Academy
Broadway, and Group B Clothing Company (Democracy). The
total purchase price included cash payments of $112,600 and
the assumption of certain liabilities totaling $23,600. These acqui-
sitions included goodwill and other intangible assets of $61,000.

These transactions were accounted for using purchase accounting.

Accordingly, the results of the acquired companies are included
in the consolidated financial statements from their respective
acquisition dates. The Company’s unaudited consolidated results
of operations on a pro-forma basis assuming these acquisitions
had accurred at the beginning of fiscal 2000 are: net sales of
$2,495 million, net income of $65 million, and diluted earnings
per share of $2.73. These pro forma results are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results that would have occurred had
these acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of the
year or of future operating results.

Transition Period On January 4, 2000 the Company purchased
the assets of Biflex International, Inc. (Biflex), including goodwill
and other intangible assets of $14,400. The purchase price
included a cash payment of $29,000 and the assumption of
certain liabilities totaling $10,400. The transaction was accounted
for as a purchase. Accordingly, the results of operations of Biflex
are included in the consclidated financial statements from the
acquisition date. This acquisition was not significant to the results
of operations or the financial position of the Company.

4, SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED, 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts:
Balance, beginning of year $ 10,025 | $ 12,142 $11,281
Provision for bad debts 2,992 1,506 3,237
Bad debts written off (3,679) (3,623) (2,376)
Balance, end of year $ 9338 | $ 10025 $12142
AMOUNTS AS OF JANUARY 31, 2002 2001
Accounts Receivable:

reserves for chargebacks

and allowances $ 51,343 | $ 46,569
Inventories:
Finished goods $273,037 | $322,601
Work in process 41,783 106,355
Raw materials 48,666 74,208
Total inventories $363,486 | $503,164
Net of obsolescence

reserves of $ 25,110 | $ 22,660

AMOUNTS AS OF JANUARY 31, 2002 2001
Property, Plant & Equipment:
Land $ 20351 $ 1948
Buildings and improvements 106,538 103,752
Machinery and equipment 129,954 132,127
Capitalized software 38,629 31,239
277,156 269,066

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (168,218) (154,568)
Property, Plant & Equipment, net $ 108,938 | $ 114,498
Intangible Assets:
Goodwill $104,924 | $ 108,281
Less accumulated amortization (27,260) (24,308)
Net goodwill 77,664 83975
Other identifiable intangibles 58,643 75,491
Less accumulated amortization (19.761) (31,673)
Net other identifiable intangibles 38,882 43,818
Net intangible assets $ 116,546 $127,793
Accrued Expenses:
Salaries and emplayee benefits $ 35370 | % 36,696
Other accrued expenses 43,452 39,674
Total accrued expenses $ 78,822 $ 76,370

5. LEASES

Certain machinery and equipment are leased under operating
leases having remaining terms ranging up to five years. Rent
expense under all operating leases for fiscal 2001 totaled $37,226
($33,346 for fiscal 2000 and $21,412 for the Transition Period).

YEARS ENDING JANUARY 31, CAPITAL OPERATING
2003 $ 294 | $ 23932
2004 294 19,302
2005 98 14,888
2006 - 10,662
2007 - 7,561
Later years - 11,173
Total minimum lease payments 686 $ 87518
Less amount representing interest (40)

Present value of net minimum lease payments | $ 646

Minimum lease payments were not reduced for future minimum
sublease rentals of $1,272.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LoNG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On August 31, 1999 the Company executed a $350,000 Senior
Credit Facility with Bank of America and other participating banks
(the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement comprises a
$100,000 364 day revolving credit facility and a $250,000
three-year revolving credit facility, both of which will expire on
August 31, 2002. The $250,000 three-year revolving credit facility
can also be used for letters of credit. Borrowings under the Credit
Agreement will bear interest at a spread of approximately .8%
over LIBOR. At January 31, 2002, outstanding short-term loans
and letters of credit under the agreement were $0 and $69,000,
respectively, Covenants are less restrictive than those currently
existing for Kellwood'’s notes due insurance companies.

The Company maintains informal, uncommitted lines of credit
with several banks, which totaled $95,000 at January 31, 2002.
There were no borrowings under these uncommitted lines at
Januery 31, 2002.

During fiscal 2001, the highest level of borrowings under all
lines was $301,750 ($217,750 for fiscal 2000). The average daily
short-term barrowings for fiscal 2001 were $113,645 ($89,314
for fiscal 2000) and the welighted average interest rate was 5.4%
(7.1% for fiscal 2000).

Long-Term Debt

AMOUNTS AS OF JANUARY 31, 2002 2001
7.625% Debentures due October 15, 2017 $133,268 | $137,704
7.875% Debentures due July 15, 2009 139,888 139,806
Uncommitted credit facilities (average rate 6.5%) - 80,000
Notes due insurance companies, 6.90%-10.8% 52,819 £6,351
Capital lease obligations, 8% 646 827
Other 59 355
326,680 425,143

Less current maturities (18,811) (13,812)
$307,869 | $411,331

Aggregate maturities on long-term debt for the next five years
are as follows: 2002 — $18,811; 2003 — $26,326; 2004 - $6,164;
2005 - $2,223; 2006 - $0; 2007 & thereafter - $273,156.

The Company issued $150,000 of 20 year senior unsecured
debentures in a public debt offering in October 1897. The
debentures, due October 15, 2017, have a coupon rate of 7.625%
payable semi-annually. The Company issued $150,000 of 10 year
senior unsecured debentures in a public debt offering in July 19S9.
The debentures, due July 15, 2009, have a coupon rate of 7.875%
payable semi-annually. Restrictive covenants of these debentures
are less restrictive than the covenants associated with the notes
due insurance companies discussed below.
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In January 2000 the Company entered into an interest
rate swap agreement with a bank to convert the interest rate on
$150,000 of 7.875% debentures from fixed to variable. In connec-
tion with this transaction, the Company also entered into an option
agreement, which entitled the bank to cancel this swap agreement
on January 15, 2001. As consideration for these agreements the
Company received a payment of $3,257 which was recorded as
a deferred option premium at January 31, 2000. The cancellation
option was exercised by the bank, and the swap was cancelled
in January 2001. These agreements were marked to market
during fiscal 2000 and thereby reduced interest expense for
fiscal 2000 by $3,257.

As of January 31, 2001, committed credit available under the
Credit Agreement provided the Company with the ability to refinance
a portion of its debt on a long-term basis. At January 31, 2001,
$80,000 in outstanding barrowings under uncommitted credit
facilities, which are supported by borrowings available under the
Credit Agreement, were classified as long-term debt.

Notes payable to insurance companies are due in quarterly
and semiannual installments from June 2002 through September
2005. Restrictive covenants of these notes include the maintenance
of minimum working capital and certain key ratios as well as a
limitation on the payment of dividends and the repurchase of
Company stock. Under the most restrictive covenants, future
dividends and purchases of Company stock are limited to
$2,458 plus 45% of net earnings after January 31, 2002,
excluding gains and losses on the disposal of capital assets.

A Singaporean manufacturing joint venture 50% owned
by the Company has a $5,300 credit facility. The Company
has guaranteed one half of the amount of any borrowing under
this facility not atherwise paid when due by the joint venture.
$400 was outstanding under this facility at January 31, 2002.

7. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Various contributory and/or noncontributory retirement plans
cover substantially all domestic and certain foreign employees.
Total retirement benefits expense included the following:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00

Single-employer defined
benefit plans $ 221 | $(12,747) $(4,037)
Multi-employer plan 734 446 233

Defined contribution plans 6,741 4295 2,612
Total retirement benefits
expense/(credit) $7,69 | $ (8,006)  $(1,192)




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Single-Employer Defined Benefit Plans

Pension Plan Termination During fiscal 2000 the Company
terminated the Kellwood Company Pension Plan. The terminated
plan generated substantially all of the net pension (credit), prepaid
pension cost, projected benefit obligation, and fair market value
of plan assets for fiscal 2000 and 1999 as set forth below. In
connection with this termination, the Company amended the Plan
to freeze benefits under the Plan effective August 31, 2000 and

to fully vest all current participants. The Plan purchased annuity
contracts to fund the benefits of all current retirees and terminated
vested participants; and based on the final participant elections,
the Plan purchased annuities for or made distributions to all cur-
rent participants, as directed by the participants. The Company
obtained approval from the Internal Revenue Service of the tax
aspects of the plan termination.

As a result of this termination, the Company recognized a gain
of approximately $4 million (net of income and excise taxes) in the
quarter ended January 31, 2001. The Company received approxi-
mately $41 million in excess cash from the Plan (after payment of
related excise and income taxes) in April 2001. Additionally, the
Company pre-funded approximately $33 million of 401(k) plan
contributions for its participating employees from Plan assets.

Concurrent with the plan termination, the Company increased
its 401(k) “company match” effective September 1, 2000 from
3% of covered compensation to 4% of cavered compensation for
participants in its 401(k) plan.

The Company’s Smart Shirts subsidiary maintains a defined
benefit plan for certain of its employees; this plan was closed to
new hires after December 1, 2000,

Summarized information on the Company’s single-employer
defined benefit plans is as follows:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00*
Components of Net

Periodic Pension Credit:

Current Service Cost $ 737 |$ 2658 $ 2,019

Interest cost on

projected benefit obligation 647 4,767 3,510

Assumed return on assets (1,087) (13,897) (9,578)

Pension plan termination (gain) - (5,900) -

Amortization of prior service costs (76) (375) 12
Net pension (credit) $ 221 1$(12,747)  $(4,037)
Weighted average key

actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 7.0% 6.0% 7.5%
Long-term rate of return

on plan assets 8.0% 6.0% 8.0%
Compensation increases 6.0% 4.0% 45%

*Nine Manths

AMOUNTS AS OF JANUARY 31, 2002 2001
Reconciliation of funded status
to prepaid pension cost:
Funded Status — Plan assets in excess of
projected benefit obligation 3 (58%) | $133372
Unamortized prior service costs 63 25
Unrecognized actuarial gains 2,555 0
Prepaid pension costs
included in other assets $ 2033 | $133,397
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected benefit obligation,
beginning of year $ 42828 | $ 65811
Service cost 1,183 2,658
Interest cost 647 4,767
Employee contributions - (433)
Plan amendments - 9,324
Actuarial gain/(loss) (1,337) 2,475
Benefits paid (35,057) (41,774)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 8264 | $ 42,828
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair market vaiue, beginning of year $ 176,200 | $204,086
Actual return on plan assets (543) 13,455
Reversion to employer, before
excise and income taxes totaling
approximately $58,300 (100,002) 0
Transfer to 401(k) plan (33,334) 0
Employee contributions 415 433
Benefits paid (35,057) (41,774)
Fair market value, end of year $ 7678 | $176,200

Plan assets consist primarily of money market funds.

Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Plan

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries make contributions
to a multi-employer defined benefit plan on behalf of their
participating employees. The plan administrator estimates
that if the Company were to withdraw from the plan, its
potential liability for unfunded plan benefits would be
approximately $4.0 million as of December 31, 2000,

the date of the most recent actuarial valuation report.
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8. SToCK PLANS FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00
The amended Restricted Stock Compensat(on Plan of 1969 and Efop?(;i;janf;teeaar:;fgss gg;?g iggégz igéiggg
the Corporate Development Incentive Plan of 1986 provide for the Reported diluted earnings
granting of common stock to key employees as performance and per share $ 165 $ 257 $ 148
incentive bonuses. The shares granted may not be transferred, Pro forma diluted earnings
sold, pledged or otherwise disposed of prior to the lapse of certain per share $ 157 $ 249 $ 142

restrictions. There was no expense recorded under these plans for
fiscal 2001 or 2000 ($700 for the Transition Period). At January
31, 2002 there were 156,231 shares available to be granted under
these plans to qualified employees.

Options to purchase common stock have been granted to key
employees under various plans at option prices not less than the
fair market value on the date of the grant. At January 31, 2002,
223 officers and other key employees held options to purchase
shares. The options expire 10 years after grant on dates ranging
from May 2002 to June 2011 and are exercisable in cumulative

The fair value of options granted (which is recorded as expense
over the option vesting period in determining the pro forma impact),
is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scheles option-
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00

b years
49% t054%

5 years 5 years
57%t06.2% 56% t058%

Expected option life
Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility of

4 ' , Kellwood stock 37% 36% 36%
installments only after stated intervals of time and are conditional Expected dividend yield
upon active employment, except for periods following disability on Keltwood stock 2.8% 3.9% 27%

ar retirement.

The Company uses the intrinsic value method in accounting
far its stock option plans. Had compensation cost for the Company's
stock options been recognized based upon the fair value on
the grant date under the methodology prescribed by SFAS 123,
Accounting for Stock-based Compensation, the Company's net
earnings and earnings per share for fiscal 2001, 2000, and the
Transition Period would have been impacted as follows:

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted was
$7.03 to $7.30 for 2001, $4.69 to $5.05 for 2000, and $6.93 to
$7.32 for the Transition Period. The pro forma effect on net earnings
for 2001, 2000, and the Transition Period is not representative of
the pro forma effect on net earnings in future years because it
does not take into consideration pro forma compensation related
to grants made prior to 1996. Presented below is a summary of
stock option plans’ activity for the years and as of the dates shown:

FISCAL PERIOD ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE

OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRICE

Beginning Balance 2,851,957 $21.68 2,379,692 $22.63 1,982,132 $22.34

Granted 562,200 $22.93 557,300 $16.97 533,604 $23.66

Exercised (257,926) $16.60 (47,285) $11.83 (107,834) $ 9.07

Canceled (66,030) $20.99 (37,750) $22.97 (28,210) $25.87

Ending Balance 3,097,201 $22.35 2,851,957 $21.68 2,379,692 $22.63
Options outstanding and exercisable at January 31, 2002 include the following:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

REMAINING NUMBER EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE

RANGE OF PRICES LIFE (000'S) PRICE (000'S) PRICE

$16.13-19.96 5.6 years 946.0 $17.58 5087 $18.06

$20.31-27.44 6.4 years 17884 $22.81 919.8 $22.33

$32.28-36.00 6.2 years 362.8 $32.52 2285 $32.60

$12.29-36.00 6.2 years 3,097.2 $22.35 1,677.0 $22.39
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{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

9. CAPITAL STOCK

The reported outstanding shares of common stock have

been reduced by treasury stock totaling 8,945,457 shares at
January 31, 2002 (8,905,379 shares at January 31, 2001 and
5,300,655 at January 31, 2000).

Authorized capital includes 500,000 shares of preferred
stock, none of which have been issued.

Nonvoting share purchase rights, exercisable only upon
satisfaction of certain conditions, entitle the holder to purchase
Series A Junior Preferred Stock (160,000 shares reserved) or,
under certain conditions, common shares at prices specified in ¢
the rights agreement. None of the rights were exercisable as of
January 31, 2002.

In November 1999 the Board of Directors authorized the
Company to repurchase up to ten percent of the outstanding
shares of its Common Stock (up to approximately 2.8 million
shares) in the open market or through privately negotiated
transactions at management's discretion and depending on
market conditions. Pursuant to this autharization, from
December 199S to February 2000 the Company purchased
2.8 million shares at an average price of $17.35 per share,
completing this authorization.

In March 2000 the Board of Directors authorized the
Company to repurchase up to ten percent of the outstanding
shares of its Common Stock (up to approximately 2.5 million
shares) in the open market or through privately negotiated
transactions at management's discretion and depending on
market conditions. Pursuant to this authorization, during March
2000 the Company purchased 1.17 million shares at an average
cost of $17.07 per share, and during the period August~QOctober
2000 the Company purchased 1.32 million shares at an average
cost of $17.14 per share, completing this authorization.

In September 2000 the Board of Directors authorized the
Company to repurchase up to an additional ten percent of the
outstanding shares of its Common Stock (up to approximately
2.27 million shares) in the open market or through privately
negotiated transactions at management's discretion and
depending on market conditions. Purchases will be financed
out of the Company’s cash resources. As discussed in Note 6,
certain debt covenants may limit purchases under this authorization.
No purchases have been made pursuant to this authorization.

10. INcoME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consisted of:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00
Current:
Domestic:
Federal $ 46,293 $ 19,532 $13,708
State 5,364 1,980 2,184
Foreign 2,885 1,883 1,378
54,542 23,395 17,270
Deferred (primarily federal) (31,942) 14,805 10,330
$ 22,600 $ 38,200 $ 27,600

Current income taxes are the amounts payable under the respective
tax regulations on each year's earnings and on foreign earnings
remitted during the year. A reconciliation of the federal statutory
income tax rate to the effective tax rate (provision for taxes) was

as follows:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00
Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Foreign tax differences (2.0) (0.8) 1.3
Amortization of intangible assets 2.2 1.5 1.4
State tax 1.7 2.6 3.2
Other 06 03 (0.7)
37.5% 38.6% 40.2%

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets consisted of the following:

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED 1/31/02 1/31/01 1/31/00
Employee related costs $ (4,826) $ 33,376 $ 26,837
Depreciation and amortization 5,724 2,324 6,828
Allowance for asset valuations (14,374) (12,648) (18,391)
Other 12,225 7,296 (1,357)
Net deferred income tax

(assets)/liabilities $ (1,251) $ 30,348 $13917
Included in:
(Prepaid taxes and expenses) $(20,440) $(18,235) $(28,344)
Deferred income taxes and other 19,189 48,583 42261
Net deferred income tax

(assets)/liabilities $ (1,251) $ 30,348 $ 13917

Federal income taxes are provided on earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries except to the extent that such earnings are expected to
be indefinitely reinvested abroad. Undistributed foreign earnings
considered to be indefinitely reinvested abroad totaled $37,000
through January 31, 2002.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SigN1FicANT CUSTOMERS
A reconciliation of basic earnings per common share and diluted During fiscal 2001 one customer (JC Penney Company, Inc.)
earnings per common share follows: accounted for 11.2% of the Company’s consolidated net sales
(as compared to 12.0% in fiscal 2000 and 10.3% in the twelve
FISCAL PERICD (NOTE 1) ENDED IN, 2002 2001 000" month period ended January 31, 2000). Accounts receivable
Numerator: included $43,177 due from this customer at January 31, 2002.
Net earnings $37,730 $60,763 $41,000
Denominator (000's):
Average common shares 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
outstanding 22,761 23,624 27,505 ) ) i .
- - There are various lawsuits and other legal proceedings against
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 166 $ 257 $ 149 o
the Company. Management and general counsel are of the opinion
Numerator: that the ultimate disposition of such litigation will have no material
Net earﬁings $37.730 | $60,763  $41,000 adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of
Impact of assumed conversions: operations.
debenture interest after-tax -~ - 14

$37730 | $60763 $41014 14, SprecTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaubiTED)

Denominator (000's): QUARTER ENDED [ APRIL JULY  OCTOBER  JANUARY
Average common shares
outstanding 22,761 23,624 27,505 Fiscal 2001:
Impact of debenture Net sales $709,367 $501,002 $601,400 $463,994
conversions _ _ 43 Gross profit 152,953 100,361 120,702 84,108
Impact of stock options 151 52 200 Net earnings 25,111* 1,833 13,931 (3,145)
Basic earnings
22912 | 23676 W 27,748 oer share 111 08 61 (14)
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 165 | $ 257 § 148"  piluyted earings
*Nine-month transition period (see Note 1). per share 1.10 08 61 (14)
Fiscal 2000:
Net szles $643,440 $468,283 $703,140 $540,310
Gross profit 141,464 96,986 145,111 97,579
Net earnings 29,004 6,638 26,730 (1,610)
Basic earnings
per share 1.17 28 1.15 (.07)
Diluted earnings
per share 1.17 .28 1.15 (.07)

*Other income in the quarter ended April 30, 2001 includes $3,419 (pretax) related to the
change in accounting for certain inventories from the LIFO to the FIFO method. The change
was effected in the first quarter of 2001 and was not cansidered material to require restate-
ment of prior years' income statements.
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15. INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND
GEOGRAPHIC AREA INFORMATION

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
apparel and related soft goods industry. Reflecting the change in
the way the Company’s business units are viewed and evaluated
by management, effective in fiscal 2000, the Company changed
the segments by which its results are reported. Segment information
for prior periods has been restated. The Company’s business units
are aggregated into the following reportable segments:

o Women's Sportswear designs, merchandises and sells
women's sportswear sold through leading retailers in all
channels of distribution. The product line includes blazers,
dresses, sweaters, blouses, vests, other tops, skirts, pants,
and skorts. The business is primarily branded goods sold at
the popular-to-moderate price points, but the segment does
include some better-to-bridge lines — upper price point
women’s sportswear sold principally to small specialty
stores, regional department stores and catalog houses.

e Men’s Sportswear designs, manufactures and sells men's
woven and knit shirts, pants, jeans and outerwear sold to
leading department stores, catalog houses and national
chains. The business is primarily private label but also
includes a number of branded programs such as Slates®
business casual shirts, sweaters and outerwear and
Nautica® dress shirts and rainwear.

o Other Soft Goods includes intimate apparel and
recreation products.

Management evaluates the performance of its operating
segments separately to individually monitor the different factors
affecting financial performance. Segment Operating Earnings
includes substantially all of the segment’s costs of production
(on a FIFO basis), distribution and administration. Kellwood
manages the following expenses at the corporate level.
Accordingly, they are not allocated to the Segments:

o Corporate general and administrative expenses,

e Pension plan termination gain,
e Amortization of intangible assets, and

e Interest income and expense, and Income taxes.

Segment net assets measures net working capital, net fixed
assets and other noncurrent assets and liabilities of the segment.
Depreciation and amortization excludes amortization of intangible
assets accounted for at the corporate level. Debt is not allocated
to the segments. Capital expenditures exclude the cost of long
lived assets included in acguisitions accounted for under
purchase accounting.

FISCAL PERIOD (NOTE 1) ENDED IN, 2002 2001 2000¢
Net Sales:
Women's Sportswear $1,514,815 | $1,635,073 $1,097,139
Men's Sportswear 347,822 362,458 289,221
Other Soft Goods 419,126 364,643 178,901
Kellwood total $2,281,763 | $2,362,174  $1,565,261
Segment Earnings:
Women's Sportswear $ 92444 | $ 110088 3% 69,355
Men’s Sportswear 29,580 36,481 28,496
Other Soft Goods 17,982 27,155 12,170
Total segments 140,018 173,725 110,021
Amortization of

Intangible assets (9,383) (8,279) (4,865)
Interest expense (34,823) (32,622) (22,654)
General corporate and other (35,480) (33,861) (13,902)
Earnings before income taxes | $ 60,330 | $ 98963 $ 68,600

Net Assets at End of Year:
Women's Sportswear $ 458,637 | $ 625521 $ 509,449

Men'’s Sportswear 126,535 108,200 99,356
Other Soft Goods 156,253 179,787 130,939
Corporate and Other 48,566 60,433 67,680
Kellwood total $ 790,991 | $ 973941 $ 807424
Capital Expenditures:

Women's Sportswear $ 3930 (% 6498 % 5,083
Men'’s Sportswear 5,884 9,247 6,170
Other Soft Goods 1,158 1,896 2,273
Corporate and Other 8,161 10,053 9,293
Keliwood total $ 19133 ]¢ 27694 ¢ 22819
Depreciation Expense:

Women's Sportswear $ 8075 | $ 7858 % 5,923
Men's Sportswear 8,074 7,959 5834
Other Soft Goods 2,287 2,470 1,824
Carporate and Other 4,600 731 660
Kellwood total $ 23036 | % 19018 § 14241

*Nine Months

Substantially all sales are to U.S. customers. Sales and transfers
between segments were not significant. Approximately 85% of the
net assets of the Men's Sportswear segment are located in Asia.
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Net sales $2.281,763 $2,362,174 $1,565,261* $2,151,147 $2,094,389
Net earnings 37,730 60,763 41,000* 1,953** 50,134
Earnings per share:

Basic 1.66 2.57 1.49* 07+ 1.92

Diluted 1.65 2.57 1.48* 07%* 1.85
Cash dividends declared per share .64 .64 A48* 64 64
Working capital 539,828 544 639 576,120 465,535 454,625
Total assets 1,044,424 1,265,725 1,097,853 1,054,212 1,103,890
Long-term debt 307,869 411,331 346,479 227,659 252,508
Total debt 334,292 542 845 361,554 338,126 413,697
Shareowners’ Equity 456,689 431,086 445 870 446,188 423,660
Equity per Share 18.94 18.00 17.04 16.09 16.32

*Nine Months

**1999 Net earnings and earnings per share are net of unusual charges for merger costs, facilities shut-down, and goodwill impairment totaling $62,338 pretax, $57,725 after-tax
($2.16 per basic share; $2.09 per diluted share).

Al data have been adjusted to reflect the 1989 merger with Koret, Inc. which was accounted for as a poaling of interests.
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(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion is a summary of the key factors manage-
ment considers necessary in reviewing the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity, capital resources and operating segment
results. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.

REsULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Sales for the year ended January 31, 2002 were $2,282, down
$80 or 3% from $2,362 in the prior year. Net earnings were $38
or $1.65 per diluted share for the year down from $61 or $2.57
per diluted share reported in the prior year.

Net Sales, Operating Earnings, and Earnings

before Unusual ltems

Fiscal 2001 vs. 2000

Summarized comparative financial data for fiscal 2001 and 2000
are as follows ($ in millions; percentages are calculated based on
actual data, but columns may not add due to rounding):

FISCAL YEAR % OF SALES

% CHANGE
2001 2000 00-01 2001 2000

Net sales $2,282 | $2,362 -3.4% | 100.0% | 100.0%
Cost of products sold 1,824 1,881 -3.1% 799% | 79.6%
S, G&A 355 353 0.5% 155%| 149%
Operating earnings 103 128 -194% 4.5% 5.4%
Pension (income)

and Pension

termination (gain) - (13) nmf - -0.6%
Amortization of

intangibles 9 8 13.3% 4% 4%
Interest expense 35 33 6.7% 1.5% 1.4%
Interest income

& other (1) 2 nmf -1% 1%
Earnings before tax 60 99 -39.0%
income taxes 23 38
Net earnings $ 38(3% 6l
income tax rate 375% | 38.6%

Sales decreased 3% in fiscal 2001, reflecting broad based
weakness in the apparel industry in the second half of the year as
consumer demand weakened in the aftermath of September 11th.
Acquisitions made during fiscal 2000 accounted for approximately
$114 of growth, partially offsetting the decline in sales.

Cost of products sold decreased 3.1% to $1,824 from $1,881

in the prior year in line with the decreased level of sales. Cost of
products sold as a percentage of sales increased to 79.9% in fiscal
2001 compared to the prior year level of 79.6%. The increase

in the cost of goods sold as a percentage of sales was primarily
due to having to provide markdown allowances and lower prices

to retailers.

Selling, General and Administrative expenses (S,G&A) increased
$2 or .5% to $355 in fiscal 2001 compared to $353 in the prior
year. S,G&A includes the impact of recent acquisitions as well as
amortization of the Integrated Business System beginning in the
current year. These impacts were offset by a number of cost
control programs the Company is pursuing.

Operating earnings (defined as net sales less cost of products sold
and S,G&A) decreased $25 to 4.5% of sales in fiscal 2001 from
5.4% in the prior year primarily as a result of the decrease in sales
as discussed above.

Pension termination gain of $6 ($4.0 after-tax) in fiscal 2000
resuited from the termination of the Kellwood Company defined
benefit pension plan discussed under FINANCIAL CONDITION
below. Also as a result of this plan termination, pension income,
which benefited reported results in fiscal 2000 and prior did not
recur in 2001 and will not recur thereafter.

Amortization of intangible assets for the year increased to $9.4
from $8.3 in the prior year as a result of the amortization of good-
will and intangible assets for the full year in 2001 on acquisitions
completed in fiscal 2000.

Interest expense increased $2 primarily because the prior year's
expense was favorably impacted by a $3 reduction of interest
expense from the recognition of the option premium on the
swap entered into in January 2000.

Interest income and other, net was a net income item in fiscal
2001 of $1.2 compared to’a net expense of $1.5 in the prior

year. Other income in 2001 included $3.4 (pretax) related to the
change in accounting for certain inventories from the LIFO to the
FIFO method. The change was effected in the first quarter of 2001
and was not considered material to require restatement of prior
years’ income statements.

The effective tax rate decreased 1.1% to 37.5% in fiscal 2001
compared to 38.6% in the prior year as a result of income tax plan-
ning measures that resulted in a lower income tax rate on funds
repatriated from the Company’'s Smart Shirts subsidiary in Asia.
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Net Earnings and EPS. Net earnings for 2001 included a

$2.1 after-tax ($.09 per diluted share) gain from the change

from LIFO to FIFO as discussed in Interest Income and Other
above. Net earnings for the prior year included pension non-cash
income and gains totaling $8.5 after-tax ($.36 per diluted share).
Net earnings for the year after adjusting both years for these items
were down $16.7 or 32% ($.66 per diluted share), due principally
1o lower sales.

Fiscal 2000 vs. Prior Year

Summarized comparative financial data for fiscal 2000 and the
comparable period in the prior year, are as follows ($ in millions;
percentages are calculated based on actual data, but columns
may not add due to rounding):

% OF SALES

FISCAL YEAR 5% CHANGE
2000 1999 99-00 2000 1999
Net sales $2,362 $2,194 7.7% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of products sold 1,881 1,723 9.2% 79.6% 785%
S, G&A 353 328 76% 149% 150%
Operating earnings 128 143 -10.4% 54% 6.5%
Pension termination (gain) (13) ®) nmf -06% -03%
Amortization of intangibles 8 9 -87% 4% 4%
Interest expense 33 31 6.2% 1.4% 1.4%
Interest income & other 2 (3) nmf 1% -1%
Koret merger costs - 5
Facilities shut-down - 7
Goodwill impairment - 49
Earnings before tax 99 51*
Income taxes 38 41
Net earnings $ 61 % 10v
Income tax rate 39% 80%

*Earnings before income taxes and Net earnings were $112 and $67, respectively, excluding
the impact of the unusual items (Merger casts, Facilities shut-down, and Goodwill impairment).

Sales increased 8% in fiscal 2000 benefiting from:
e A full year of sales from Biflex International, a8 maker
of private label bras and intimate apparel acquired in
January 2000,

e Four acquisitions completed during fiscal 2000 (Dorby
Frocks, Ltd., Romance du Jour, Academy Broadway, and
Group B Clothing Company which markets the Democracy
brand), and

o Continued growth in the men's shirt business through
private label programs.
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These gains were partially offset by a $30 drop in volume
from the two updated branded divisions within the Women's
Sportswear segment which were closed during the quarter and
were repositioned within other aperating units of the Company.

Cost of products sold increased 9.2% to $1,881 from $1,723
in the prior year. Cost of products sold as a percentage of sales
increased to 79.6% in fiscal 2000 compared to the prior year level
of 78.5%. The increase in the cost of goods sald as a percentage
of sales was primarily due to:
e The costs incurred to reposition the two Women'’s Sportswear
branded divisions mentioned above,

e Purchase accounting charges during the first year after
completion of the five acquisitions mentioned above,

e Additional inventory reserves established to facilitate the
liquidation of certain inventory of repositioned divisions and
inventories being manufactured for Montgomery Wards as
a conseqguence of their bankruptey filing, and

e Additional markdowns required due to the soft retail
environment.

Selling, General and Administrative expenses (S,G&A) increased
$25 or 7.6% to $353 in fiscal 2000 compared to $328 in the
prior year (excluding the impact of pension income in both
years). This increase was generally in line with the increase in
sales. As with the increase in sales, the majority of the increase
in S,G&A expenses was the result of the acquisitions discussed
above. Additionally, higher divisional S,G&A to support internal
sales growth and an increase in investment spending to launch
new brands and products and improve information systems was
partially offset by overhead savings from the consolidation of
certain divisions and operations.

Operating earnings (defined as net sales less cost of products sold
and S,G&A) decreased $15 to 5.4% of sales in fiscal 2000 from
6.5% in the prior year primarily as a result of the increase in the
Cost of products sold as discussed above.

Pension termination gain of $6 ($4.0 after-tax) resulted from

the termination of the Kellwood Company defined benefit pension
plan discussed under FINANCIAL CONDITION below. In addition
to this gain on the termination of the plan, the Company recorded
pension income from the terminated plan under FAS 87 of $7.3
in 2000 and $5.6 in the prior year.

Amortization of intangible assets for the year decreased as a result
of the provision for goodwill impairment recorded in the April 1999
quarter. This decrease was substantially offset by amortization of
goodwill on new acquisitions.
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Interest expense increased $1.9 as a result of the net impact of:
e $5 higher interest expense associated with increased debt
levels resulting from the repurchase of $91 of the Company’s
outstanding shares, and

# $3 higher interest expense resulting from the fiscal 2000
acquisitions, partially offset by

o 33 lower interest expense as a result of reduced levels of
short-term debt during the year due to normal cash flow
from operations, and

e 2 $3 reduction of interest expense from the recognition of the
option premium on the swap entered into in January 2000,

Interest income and other, net was a net expense of $1.5 in fiscal
2000 compared with income of $3.2 in the comparable period in
the prior year. The prior year amount included a higher level of
interest income earned as a result of higher cash balances during
the year as well as $2 of income from unusual nonrecurring financial
items including a gain on the sale of a building.

The effective tax rate for the year ended January 31, 2000 of
80% was a consequence primarily of the non-deductible Goodwill
impairment charge of $48.9 and non-deductible Koret merger
costs of $2.4. Excluding unusual items, the Company’s effective
tax rate was 38.6% in fiscal 2000 and 40.6% in the comparable
period in the prior year. This 2.0% drop in the effective tax rate
resulted from the decreased amortization of goodwill and from
certain business initiatives which had the effect of reducing the
Company’s effective state income tax rate.

Shares outstanding and EPS. From December 1999 through
October 2000, the Company repurchased 5.3 million shares of
Kellwood Company common stock. As a result, there were only
23.7 million weighted average diluted shares outstanding in fiscal
2000 compared with 27.8 million shares in the comparable period
in the prior year.

Segment Results
The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
apparel and related soft goods industry. The Company’s business
units are aggregated into the following reportable segments:

e Women's Sportswear,

e Men’s Sportswear, and

o Other Soft Goods, which includes
intimate apparel and recreation products.

Sales and Operating Earnings by Segment for fiscal 2001, 2000
and the twelve months ended January 31, 2000 were as follows:

FISCAL YEAR % CHANGE
2001 2000 1999 00-01 99-00

Net Earnings

Women'’s Sportswear $1,515 | $1,635 $1,593 (74%) 2.7%

Men's Sportswear 348 362 328 (4.0%) 10.5%

Other Soft Goods 419 365 273 149% 33.6%

Kellwood total $2,282 | $2,362 $2,194 (34%) 7.7%

Segment Earnings

Women's Sportswear $ 924 1 %1101 $12189 (16.0%) (3.7%)

Men's Sportswear 29.6 36.5 30.1  (189%) 21.2%

Other Soft Goods 18.0 27.2 241  (33.8%) 129%

Total segment earnings $140.0 | $173.7 $176.1  (194%) (1.3%)

Segment Earnings

Margins

Women's Sportswear 6.1% 6.7% 7.7%

Men’s Sportswear 8.5% | 10.1% Q2%

Other Soft Goods 4.3% 7.4% 88%

Total segment earnings 6.1% 7.4% 8.0%

Women's Sportswear Sales of Women'’s Sportswear decreased
$120 (7%) in fiscal 2001 to $1,515. Recent acguisitions con-
tributed a combined $91 of growth. Excluding acquisitions, sales
were actually down $211 or 13.2% principally due to the extreme
softness in the retail environment accentuated by the economic
effects of the September 11 terrcrist attack.

e The Company’s core brands (Sag Harbor® Karet® and Kathie
Lee® sportswear and dresses), which collectively represent
approximately 60% of Women'’s Sportswear valume, were
down 7% or $65 for 2001 after being up $36 in the first half.

e Last year Kellwood took action to reposition four brands
(lvy® Melrose® Bicé® and Sag Harbor® Sport). Collectively,
these brands were down $71 in 2001.

e Finally, other Women's Sportswear brands and private
label programs were down $75, primarily as a result of
soft demand at retail.

Segment earnings (defined as net sales less cost of products
sold and selling, genera! and administrative expenses) decreased
$17.7 for the year to 6.1% of sales compared {0 6.7% of sales in
the prior year. The drop in margin was principally due to having to
provide higher markdown allowances to the retailers and liquidating
excess inventory.
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Sales of Women's Sportswear increased $42 (3%) in fiscal
2000 to $1,635, with essentially all of the net increase resulting
from acquisitions (Dorby Fracks and Democracy). Several of the
Company’s Women's Sportswear brands generated organic growth
in the low single digit range from the core and more traditionally
styled brands. These gains were offset by approximately a $30
drop in volume from two of this segment’s updated branded
divisions, which were closed during the fourth guarter, and
repositioned within other Kellwood business units. Segment
earnings decreased $11 for the year to 6.7% of sales compared
to 7.7% of sales in the prior year. This decline was a consequence
of the costs incurred to reposition the updated branded divisions
and as a result of a higher level of markdowns that was required
compared tc the prior year due to the soft retail environment.

Men's Sportswear Sales of Men's Sportswear were down $14 or
4% to $348 in 2001. The Smart Shirts private label shirt business
continues to perform well despite market conditions with sales up
3% for the year. This improvement was offset by the loss of certain
pants and jeans business as the Company's manufacturing facili-
ties for these products are shifted to Mexico. In order to become
more competitive, in fiscal 2000 Kellwood closed its remaining
domestic sewing facllities. The Company has started up a new
plant in Mexico which began shipping product in October. As a
result, sales of private label pants and jeans were below the level
shipped last year.

Segment earnings decreased $7 or 18.9% from the prior
year; segment margins decreased 1.6% to 8.5% of sales.
Provisions for inventory liquidation and customer requirements
for markdowns and margin pressures have depressed margins
in the Men's Special Markets division.

The Men’s Sportswear segment enjoyed an exceptionally
strong fiscal 2000, with sales increasing $34 or 10.5% to $362.
This growth was driven by the Smart Shirts business which is a
leading private label manufacturer of better priced woven shirts
sold to the leading department stares and catalog houses. The
fiscal 2000 growth came as a result of capturing additional market
share by taking programs from three major competitors and as a
result of the increased distribution of the new Slatese line of men’s
casual business sportswear and dress shirts. Growth was also
driven by the newly expanded knit shirt capacity in the Maldives
and by an increase in sales of men's pants made in Sri Lanka.
The shirt business is also benefiting from pipeline filling as the
retailers change their product mix to include a more broad range
of new colors and upgraded fabrications.
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Segment earnings, fueled by the sales increase, increased
$6.5 or 21% to 10.1% aof sales in fiscal 2000 from 9.2% of sales
in the prior year. The increase in the operating earnings margin
was driven by increased capacity in China, Sri Lanka and the
Maldives as well as expansion of the Company’s network of
contractors in low cost areas. More efficient operation as facilities
are operating closer to capacity also improved gross margins.

Other Soft Goods This segment reported a $54 or 14.9% increase
in sales for fiscal 2001 due principally to growth in the first half
of the year resulting from the launching of two new brands of
camping products and growth from new Intimate Apparel private
label programs. Segment earnings declined $9.2 to 4.3% of sales
fram 7.4% of sales in the prior year because the sales growth was
in programs carrying lower than average margins, and provisions
were required to cover the liguidation of certain inventories.

In fiscal 2000, sales of Other Soft Goods increased $92
or 34% to $365. Acquisitions (Biftex International, Academy
Broadway and Romance du Jour) provided $67 or 72% of the
year-to-year increase in sales. The remaining organic growth of
approximately 9% was due primarily to new product introductions.
Operating earnings increased $3 or 13% as a result of the increase
in sales but declined as a percentage of sales from 8.8% in the
prior year to 7.4% in fiscal 2000 as a result of product mix
changes within the segment.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

FAS 141 & 142 In July 2001 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 141, Business Combinations, and No. 142, Gooawill and
Other Intangible Assets, effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible
assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized
but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with
the new Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be
amartized over their useful lives.

The Company will apply the new rules of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter
of 2002. During 2002 the Company will perform the required
impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
as recorded on February 1, 2002. The Company has not yet
determined what the effect of these tests will be, if any, on its
earnings and financial position. Any impairment resulting from
the initial application of the Statements will be recorded as a
cumuiative effect of accounting change as of February 1, 2002.

Had FAS 142 been effective for 2001, application of the non-
amortization provisions of the Statement would have increased the
Company'’s reported diluted earnings per share by approximately
$.25 for that year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires that management make
certain estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
will differ from those estimates and assumptions and the differ-
ences may be material. Some of the more intricate areas of the
Company’s accounting — areas requiring the exercise of significant
judgment in the preparation of the financial statements — include
the following.

Accounts Receivable — Reserves for Chargebacks, Allowances
Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances for bad debts
as well as expected future chargebacks from customers. It is the
nature of our industry that the Company faces great pressure from
customers to provide allowances to compensate for customer mar-
gin shortfalls. This pressure can take the form of the customers
requiring the Company to provide price concessions on prior ship-
ments to support customers’ markdown activities as a prerequisite
for getting future orders. Pressure for these concessions is largely
determined by the performance of our products at retail (to the
extent our customer has more of our goods on hand at the end of
the season, there will be greater pressure on us to grant markdown
concessions). Qur accounts receivable balances are reported net
of expected allowances for these matters based on the historical
level of concessions required and our estimates of the level of
markdowns and allowances that will be required in the coming
season in order to collect the receivables.

Inventory Valuation Allowances

Inventories are recorded at cost. Allowances are provided to
reduce inventory values to net realizable value when there are
factors indicating that certain inventories will not be sold on terms
sufficient to recover their cost. The Company's inventories can be
classified into two types: replenishment and non-reptenishment.
Replenishment items are those basics (bras, dress shirts, etc.)
that are not seasonal or dependent on fashion trends; the same
products are sold by retailers 12 months a year. Retailers generally
replenish their stocks of these items as they are sold. Only a
relatively small portion of the Company's business involves
replenishment items.

The majority of the Company’s business consists of items that
are highly tied to a season or fashion look. These non-replenishment
items, though physically intact, are economically “perishable”. The
value of a rack full of seasonal merchandise might be sufficient for
us to generate a profit over its cost at the beginning of its season,
but by the end of the season a few months later the same inventory
might be salable for less than cost. The value may rise again the
following year when the season in which the goods sell approaches
— or it may not, depending on the level of prior year merchandise
on the market.

While some “prior year” merchandise is sold by the Company
through its own outlet stores, the majority of out-of-season invento-
ries must be sold to discounters and other customers who serve a
customer base that will purchase prior year fashions. The amount,
if any, that these customers will pay for prior year fashions is deter-
mined by the desirability of the inventory itself as well as the gen-
eral level of prior year goods available o these customers. The
assessment of inventory value as a result is highly subjective and
requires an assessment of the seasonality of the inventory, its
future desirability, and future price levels in the “off-price” sector.

Market Value Assessments of Goodwill and Intangible Assets —
Timing and Amount of Future Impairment Charges

Before the implementation of FAS 142, the values of goodwill and
intangible assets were written off over the period expected to be
benefited through regular amortization charges. Under FAS 142,
goodwill will no longer be written off through periodic charges to
the income statement over the defined period. Future goodwill
impairment charges will be required as and when the value of
the acquired business becomes less than its book value. The
determination of the value of the businesses will necessarily

be highly subjective, as it is determined largely by projections

of future profitability and cash flows.

Financial CONDITION

Cash flow from operations is the Company’s primary source of lig-
uidity. Kellwood uses financial leverage to minimize the overall cost
of capital and maintain adequate operating and financial flexibility.
Management monitors leverage through its debt-to-capital ratio.
Working capital management is monitored primarily by analysis of
the Company’s investment in accounts receivable and inventories.

Leverage As a result of the steps the Company has taken to
reduce inventory and total debt, Kellwood’s debt-to-capital ratio
declined to 42.3% at January 31, 2002 compared to 55.7% at
January 31, 2001.
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Working Capital The Company's working capital requirement
for inventories and receivables is influenced primarily by sales
patterns, which are highly seasonal. Inventory levels are highly
dependent upon forecasted sales, and receivables are a result of
the timing of recent months’ sales and customer payment terms.

The current ratio increased to 3.2 to 1 at January 31, 2002
compared to 2.5 to 1 at January 31, 2001 and 3.3 to 1 at January
31, 2000 as a result of the decrease in current notes payable relat-
ed to the decreased investment in inventories at January 31, 2002.

Accounts receivable decreased $46 (13%) at January 31,
2002 compared to the prior year as a result of decreased sales
volumes in the fourth quarter. Days sales in accounts receivable at
January 31, 2002 increased to 59 days, compared to 57 days at
January 31, 2001.

Inventory levels decreased $140 (28%) to $363 at January 31,
2002 compared to $503 at January 31, 2001 as a result of more
aggressive management of production commitments and inventory
levels in response to market conditions. Overall, the Company now
has approximately 74 days supply in inventory, which is in line
with the Company’s target of 78 —-80 days for this time in the
business cycle.

Investing Activities Capital spending was $19 for fiscal 2001,
$28 in 2000, and $23 for the nine-month Transition Period. As
the Company has completed its program of warehouse construction
and development of the Integrated Business System (I1BS), capital
spending for the coming year is planned to be in the $20 range.
Approximately half of this spending is planned for information
technology projects.

Fiscal 2000 During fiscal 2000 the Company completed four
acquisitions: Dorby Frocks, Ltd., Romance du Jour, Academy
Broadway, and Group B Clothing Company, including goodwill
and other intangible assets of $61.0. The total purchase price
included cash payments of $112.6 and the assumption of
certain liabilities totaling $23.6. These transactions were
accounted for using purchase accounting.

Transition Period On January 4, 2000 the Company purchased
Biflex International, Inc. (Biflex), including goodwill and other
intangible assets of $14.4. The purchase price included a cash
payment of $29.0 and the assumption of certain liabilities totaling
$9.7. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase.
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Financing Activities Long-term financings are arranged as neces-
sary to meet the Company’s anticipated capital requirements, with
the timing, principal amount and terms depending on the prevail-
ing securities markets generally and the market for the Company's
debt in particular.

In July 1999 the Company completed a 10-year public debt
offering totaling $150. These debentures carry a 7.875% coupon
rate. They received investment grade ratings fram Moody's and
S&P of Baa3/BBB.

In December 2001 Standard & Poor's lowered its ratings on
the Company's long-term debt securities to “BBB-" In March 2002
Moody’s Investor Service lowered its rating on the Company’s long-
term debt securities to “Bal” Management does not expect these
rating changes to have a significant impact on the Company's ability
to meet its needs for funding of operations or future acquisitions.

In January 2000 the Company entered into an interest
rate swap agreement with a bank to convert the interest rate on
$150 of 7.875% debentures from fixed to variable. In connection
with this transaction, the Company also entered into an option
agreement, which entitled the bank to cancel this interest rate
swap agreement on January 15, 2001. As consideration for these
agreements the Company received a payment of $3.3 which was
recorded as a deferred option premium at January 31, 2000. The
cancellation option was exercised by the bank, and the swap was
cancelled in January 2001, These agreements were marked to
market during fiscal 2000 and thereby reduced interest expense
for fiscal 2000 by $3.3.

The Company maintains informal, uncommitted lines of credit
with several banks, which totaled $95 at January 31, 2001. There
were no outstanding borrowings under these uncommitted lines at
January 31, 2002,

Kellwood maintains a three-year $350 committed bank credit
facility to ensure the liquidity necessary to support planned internal
growth as well as to provide the capacity for additional acquisitions.
At January 31, 2002 outstanding loans and letters of credit under
this agreement were $0 and $69, respectively. Management
believes that the combined operating, cash and equity position of
the Company will continue to provide the capital flexibility neces-
sary to fund future opportunities and to meet existing obligations.
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Disclosures Concerning “Off-Balance Sheet” Arrangements

A Singaporean manufacturing joint venture 50% owned by the
Company has a $5.3 credit facility. The Company has guaranteed
one half of the amount of any borrowing under this facility not oth-
erwise paid when due by the joint venture. $.4 was outstanding
under this facility at January 31, 2002.

Pension Plan Termination During fiscal 2000 the Company
terminated the Kellwood Company Pension Plan. The terminated
pension plan generated substantially all of the Net pension (credit),
Prepaid pension cost, Projected benefit obligation, and Fair market
value of plan assets for fiscal 2000 and the Transition Period as set
forth in Note 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. In con-
nection with this termination, the Company amended the plan to
freeze benefits under the plan effective August 31, 2000 and to
fully vest all current participants. The Plan purchased annuity
contracts to fund the benefits of all current retirees and terminated
vested participants; and the Plan purchased annuities for or made
distributions to all current participants, as directed by the partici- ‘
pants. The Company obtained approval from the Internal Revenue
Service of the tax aspects of the plan termination.

As a result of this termination, the Company recognized a
gain of approximately $4 (net of income and excise taxes) in the
quarter ended January 31, 2001, The Company received approxi-
mately $41 in excess cash from the plan (after payment of related
excise and income taxes) in April 2001. Additionally, the Company
ore-funded approximately $33 of 401(k) plan company match
contributions for its participating employees from Plan assets.

Concurrent with the plan termination, the Company increased
its 401(k) “company match” effective September 1, 2000 from
3% of covered compensation to 4% of covered compensation for
participants in its 401(k) plan.

For periods subseguent to fiscal 2000, the Company:

e will no longer report a significant prepaid pension cost on
its balance sheet,

e will no longer record pension income — the “Net pension
(credit)”, and

o will have an increased cost to fund the “company match” of
its 401(k) plan costs resulting from the increase to 4% in the
company matching percentage. But for the following approxi-
mately seven years the total cost of the “company match” is
expected to be funded on a cash basis by the approximately
$33 of pre-funding transferred from the pension plan. Over
approximately the next seven years, as the pre-funding is
allocated to participants' accounts, the prepaid 401(k)
asset will be reduced. '

Share Repurchases In November 1999 the Board of Directors
authorized the Company to repurchase up to ten percent of the
outstanding shares af its Comman Stock (up to approximately
2.8 million shares) in the open market or through privately nego-
tiated transactions at management's discretion and depending
on market conditions. Pursuant to this authorization, from
December 1999 to February 2000 the Company purchased

2.8 million shares at an average price of $17.35 per share,
completing this authorization.

In March 2000 the Board of Directors authorized the Company
to repurchase up to ten percent of the outstanding shares of its
Common Stock (up to approximately 2.5 million shares) in the open
market or through privately negotiated transactions at management’s
discretion and depending on market conditions. Pursuant to this
authorization, during March 2000 the Company purchased 1.17 mil-
lion shares at an average cost of $17.07 per share, and during the
period August 11-October 24, 2000 the Company purchased
1.32 million shares at an average cost of $17.14 per share,
completing this authorization.

On September 8, 2000 the Board of Directors authorized
the Company to repurchase up to an additional ten percent of
the outstanding shares of its Common Stock (up to approximately
2.27 million shares) in the open market or through privately negoti-
ated transactions at management's discretion and depending on
market conditions. Purchases, if any, will be financed out of the
Company’s cash resources. As discussed in Note 6, certain debt
covenants may limit purchases under this authorization. No
purchases have been made pursuant to this authorization.

MARKET RISK SENSITIVITY AND INFLATION RISKS

Foreign Currency Risk The Company does not believe that it has
significant foreign currency transactional exposures. The impact of
a ten percent unfavorable change in the exchange rate of the U.S.
dollar against the prevailing market rates of the foreign currencies
in which the Company does have transactional exposures would be
immateriaf.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is managed through the
maintenance of a portfolio of variable- and fixed-rate debt com-
posed of short- and long-term instruments. The objective is to
maintain a cost-effective mix that management deems appropriate.
At January 31, 2002, the Company's debt portfolio was composed
of approximately 2% variable-rate debt and 98% fixed-rate debt.
Kellwood’s strategy regarding management of its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations did not change significantly during fiscal
2001. Management does not expect any significant changes in

its exposure to interest rate fluctuations or in how such exposure
is managed the coming year.
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Various financial instruments issued by the Company are
sensitive to changes in interest rates. Market interest rate changes
would result in increases or decreases in the market value of the
Company’s fixed-rate debt. With respect to the Company’s fixed-
rate debt outstanding at January 31, 2002, a 10% increase in
interest rates would have resulted in approximately a $16 decrease
in the market value of Kellwood's fixed-rate debt; a 10% decrease
in interest rates would have resulted in approximately an $15
increase in the market value of Kellwood'’s fixed-rate debt. With
respect to the Company’s variable-rate debt, a 10% change in
interest rates would have had an immaterial impact on the
Company's interest expense for fiscal 2001.

Commodity Price Risk Kellwood is subject to commadity price
risk arising from price fluctuations in the market prices of sourced
garments or the various raw materials that comprise its manufac-
tured products (synthetic fabrics, woolens, denim, cotton, etc.).
The Company is subject to commodity price risk to the extent that
any fluctuations in the market prices of its purchased garments
and raw materials are not reflected by adjustments in selling prices
of its products or if such adjustments significantly trail changes in
these costs. Kellwood does not use derivative instruments in the
management of these risks.

Inflation Risk Kellwood's inflation risks are managed by each
business unit through selective price increases when possible,
productivity improvements, and cost-containment measures.
Management does not believe that inflation risk is material to
the Company's business or its consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

OUTLOOK AS OF APRIL 13, 2002

Current press releases and other information about the Company
are available at the Company’s web site (www.kellwood.com)
during the year.
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Kellwood's financial plan for 2002 calis for sales just under
$2,100, down approximately $230 or 9% -10% with all of the year-
to-year erosion occurring in the first half of the year. Management
expects sales to be approximately $1,000 in the first half of fiscal
2002 versus $1,200 in the first half of last year. Sales in the
second half of 2002 are expected to be essentially flat with last
year. The Company believes that because of the prevailing eco-
nomic uncertainty, it is too early to predict the season in which
the consumers will return to previous levels of apparel spending.
Accordingly, the Company will conservatively manage and plan
its business.

Kellwood has taken aggressive action to adjust its business
model in response to the difficult economic and business environ-
ment the Company is in and expects 1o be in for the foreseeable
future. As a result of actions put in place in 2001 and continued
focus on inventory, cost control and conservative spending plans,
management anticipates that earnings before interest, taxes and
amortization will be equal to that achieved in 2001 even though
sales are planned down $200. Management is forecasting lower
interest expense, a 2 percentage point reduction in the Company’s
effective tax rate, and a $7 before tax reduction in amortization of
intangibie assets which will increase after tax earnings by approxi-
mately $0.25 per share. The reduction in amortization expense is
due to the adoption of FAS 142, a new accounting standard that
suspends the amortization of goodwill and certain intangible
assets. Net earnings and earnings per share in fiscal 2002, before
consideration of a potential special charge, are expected to be in
the range of $42-$44, or $1.80-$1.90 per share, versus $37.7,
or $1.65 per share, reported in fiscal 2001 on a diluted basis.

The global market for piece goods and apparel production
has changed significantly in favar of sourcing piece goods and
finished product out of the Far East. At the same time, the downturn
in the economy and consumer confidence has resulted in a pro-
longed period of weak consumer and retall demand which in turn
has resulted in some excess capacity in the Company’s warehous-
ing and distribution network. As a result, management is analyzing
the Company’s sourcing and distribution infrastructure along with
other structural issues and will be considering actions to align it
to reflect the new business environment. As a result of this study,
the Company expects to implement restructuring actions which
will impact fiscal 2002 earnings by as much as $15 before tax
($9.4 after tax), or $0.40 per share.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS
TuAT MAY AFFECT RESULTS

This Annual Report contains statements which, to the extent
they are not statements of historical or present fact, constitute
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Securities
Act of 1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking
statements represent the Company's expectations or beliefs
concerning future events and are based on various assumptions
and subject to a wide variety of risks and uncertainties. Although
the Company believes that its expectations reflected in the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, it cannat and does not give any
assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct.

The Company's forward-looking statements are based on
certaln assumptions, and the Company’s operations are subject
to various risks and uncertainties. Any one of these factors or any
combination of these factors could materially affect the results
of the Company's operations and cause actual results to differ
materially from the Company’s expectations. These factors
include but are not limited to:

e changes in the retail environment. With the growing trend
towards retail trade consolidation, the Company is increasingly
dependent upon key retailers whose bargaining strength and
share of the Company's business is growing. Accordingly,
the Company faces greater pressure from these customers
to provide more favorable trade terms. The Company can be
negatively affected by changes in the policies or negotiating
positions of its customers. The inability of the Company fo
develop satisfactory programs and systems to satisfy these
customers could adversely affect operating results in any
reporting period.

e changes in the relative performance of the Company's
business units that could have an adverse impact on the
business unit's forecasted cash flows, resulting in goodwill
impairment charges.

e changes in trends in the market segments in which the
Company competes;

o the performance of the Company's products within the
prevailing retail environment;

o customer acceptance of both new designs and newly
introduced product lines;

e actions of competitors that may impact the Company’s
business;

e financial difficulties encountered by customers or suppliers;

e the impact of economic changes such as:
- the overal! level of consumer spending for apparel,
- national and regional economic conditions,
- inflation or deflation,
- currency exchange fluctuations, and
- changes in interest rates and other capital market
conditions;

e stable governments and business conditions in the
nations where the Company's products are manufactured;

e the scope, nature or impact of acquisition activity; and

e changes in the Company’s plans, strategies, objectives,
expectations and intentions that may happen at any time
at the discretion of the Company.

The reader is also directed to the Company's periodic filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission for additional factors
that may impact the Company’s results of operations and financial
condition.

The waords “believe; “expect] “will “estimate] “project]
“forecast, “should; “anticipate” and similar expressions may
identify forward-looking statements. Additionally, all statements
other than statements of historical facts included in this Annual
Report including without limitation, the statements under “Financial
Review” and “Outlook’ are aiso forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees, as actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in
forward-looking statements. The Company specifically disclaims
any obligation to publicly update, modify, retract or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. All forward-looking statements contained
herein, the entire contents of the Company's web site, and all
subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributa-
ble to the Company or persons acting on its behalf, are expressly
gualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.
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Kellwood Company Directory of Business Segments

WOMEN’S SPORTSWEAR

Keliwood Womenswear
120 West 45th, 27th floor
New York, NY 10036
212-354-5700
212-575-7459 Fax

President: Stephen L. Ruzow

Dorby

463 Seventh Avenue
New York, NY 10018
212-695-6211
212-279-7318 Fax

Chief Executive Officer:
Richard Golden

President and Chief Operating
Officer: Stanley Schwartz
President Miss/Lady Dorby:
Kathy Kulik

Key Brands: Miss Dorby™
Lady Darby;" DBY™

Product: Dresses and career apparel.

Halmode Apparel, Inc.
1400 Broadway, 11th floor
New York, NY 10018
212-564-7800
212-398-6462 Fax

President and Chief Executive
Officer: Jay Diamond

Key Brands: Kathie Lee?™ Koret®
Lifestyle Dresses, Plaza South
M.H.M® Sag Harbor® Dresses,
Sag Harbor® Suits

Product: Knit and woven
dresses, and suits.

Jax

611 Alexander Street

Vancouver, BC CANADA V6A 1E1
604-251-8600

604-251-8602 Fax

1412 Broadway, Suite 1106
New York, NY 10018
212-768-2620
212-768-2625 Fax

President: Mustafa Khan

Key Brands: Jax® Jax Country® Jax®
Essentials, Studio Jax® Softwear@Jax
Product: Sportswear.

Kellwood New England
300 Manley Street
Brockton, MA 02303
508-588-7200
508-583-1702 Fax

President: Jeffrey Aschkenes

Key Brands: David Brooks® Burns® Bill
Burns Signature®® EMME®™® Northern
Isles®

Product: Sweaters, knitwear

and sportswear.

Keliwood Western Region
13071 East Temple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4122
626-934-4128 Fax

Chairman: Arthur K. Gordon

David Dart Design Group
13083 East Temple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4133
626-934-4134 Fax

President: David Dartnell

Key Brands: David Dart®
Product: Sportswear, knitwear,
sweaters, and dresses.

Democracy

13085 East Temple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4100
626-934-5007 Fax

President: Martin Brander

Key Brands: Democracy®
Product: Sportswear,
knitwear and dresses.

EeNeC

13071 East Temnple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4111
626-934-4112 Fax

Chief Executive Officer:
Arthur K. Gordon

Key Brands: AJ Brandon®

David Meister;” Due Date? Sangria;”
Studio Ease®

Product: Contemporary day

and eveningwear, maternity wear,
sportswear, casualwear and dresses.

{1) Manufactured under license from tambchap Productions, Ltd., owner of the trademark Kathie Lee®
(2) Manufactured under license from Bill Burns New York, Inc., owner of the trademark Bill Burns®

(3} Manufactured under license from Emme Associates, Inc., owner of the trademark Emme?®

(4) Manufactured under license from PRL USA Inc. and Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, owner of the

trademark Ralph Lauren®
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My Micheile

13071 East Temple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4166
626-334-4165 Fax

President: Caren Belair

Key Brands: My Michelie? Jolt™
Jactyn B®

Product: Dresses and sportswear
for juniors and girls.

Vintage Biue

13087 Last Temple Avenue
City of Industry, CA 91746
626-934-4144
626-934-4145 Fax

President: Laura Ferraro

Key Brands: Vintage Blue"
Vintage Studio™
Product: Sportswear.

Koret

505 14th Street

Oakland, CA 94612-1406
510-622-7000
501-622-7110 Fax

Vice Chairman: Martin J. Granoff
President and Chief Executive
Officer: Steven Rudin

Key Brands: Koret® Napa Valley?®
Cricket Lane® Melrose®
Product: Sportswear.

New Campaign, Inc.

635 Madison Avenue, 15th Floor
New York, NY 10022
212-355-7656

212-355-1100 Fax

Chief Executive Officer:
Margie Greenlees

Key Brands: Ralph Lauren®?
Product: Belts, leather goods
and other accessories.

Sag Harbor

1407 Broadway, Suite 605
New York, NY 10018
212-391-8666
212-730-2040 Fax

Chief Executive Officer: Martin Brody

Key Brands: Sag Harbor® Bicé®
Sag Harbor® Sport
Product: Sportswear.

MEN’S SPORTSWEAR

Kellwood Menswear

120 West 45th, 27th floor
New York, NY 10036
212-354-5700
212-764-6643 Fax

President: Robert C. Skinner, Jr.

Key Brands: States® Menswear®
Product: Sportswear, shirts, jeans,
casual bottoms and outerwear.

Smart Shirt Ltd.

55 King Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
011-852-279-75111
011-852-234-32715 Fax

Managing Director; Jesse C.P. Zee

Key Brands: Nautica®dress shirts®
Ron Chereskin® and private labels.
Product: Dress and sport shirts, pants
and sharts.

OTHER SOFT GOODS

American Recreation
Products, inc.

1224 Fern Ridge Parkway
Saint Louis, MO 63141
314-576-8000
314-576-8072 Fax

President: George J. Grabner, Jr.

Key Brands: Kelty® Sierra Designs®
Slumberjack® Wenzel®

Product: Tents, sleeping bags, back-
packs, outdoor technical clothing and
related camping accessories.

Kellwood Intimate Apparel

180 Madison Avenue, 11th floor
New York, NY 10016
212-684-4866

212-689-2631 Fax

President: lames Mogan

Key Brands: Berlei® Crowntuft®
Dentelle® Dotti® Stan Herman®?!
L.A. Intimates™

Product: Panties, bras and daywear,
sleepwear, dusters, robes, swimwear,
cover-ups, and performance
activewear.

{5) Knit and woven shirts, dress shirts, sweaters and outerwear manufactured under license from Levi

Strauss & Co., owner of the trademark Slates®

(6} Dress shirts and outerwear manufactured under iicense from Nautica Apparel, Inc., owner of the

trademark Nautica®

{7) Manufactured under license from Stan Herman Designs, owner of the trademark Stan Herman®




Board of Directors and Officers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Raymond F. Bentele 3%
Retired President, CEO
and former Director
Mallinckrodt Group, Inc.
St. Louis, Missouri

Martin Bloom®
Chairman

MBI Associates
Lenox, Massachusetts

Edward S. Bottum 3
Managing Director

Chase Franklin Corporation
Chicagg, lllinois

Kitty G. Dickerson, Ph.D. %
Professor and

Department Chair

University of Missouri-Columbia
Columbia, Missouri

Leonard Genovese *®
Director

Roslyn Bancorp Inc.
Roslyn, New York

Martin J. Granoff
Vice Chairman

Karet of California, Inc.
Oakland, California

Jerry M. Hunter™
Partner

Bryan Cave

St. Louis, Missouri

Janice E. Page®
Director

R.G. Barry Corp.
Columbus, Ohio

Hat J. Upbin®
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Kellwood Company

OFFICERS

Hal J. Upbin
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

James C. Jacobsen
Vice Chairman

W. Lee Capps, Il
Senior Vice President Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

Thomas H. Pollihan
Senior Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel

Lawrence E. Hummel
Vice President Controller

Roger D. Joseph
Vice President Treasurer and
Investor Relations

Leon M. McWhite
Vice President
Human Resources

Donald R. Riley
Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Robert C. Skinner
Vice President and
President Menswear

John A. Turnage
Vice President Compliance
and Quality

Committees

W Audit Committee

@ Compensation and
Stock Option Committee

® Executive Committee

“ Corporate Governance
Committee

Shareowner Information

ANNuUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of share-
owners will be held at 9 a.m.
on Thursday, May 30, 2002, at:

Kellwood Company
600 Kellwood Parkway
Chesterfield, MO 63017

SHAREOWNER
INFORMATION

Communication regarding ali
shareowner records should
be directed to the Company's
transfer agent and registrar:

American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038
800-937-5449
www.amstock.com

Inquiries concerning matters of
general interest to shareowners
should be sent to Andee Aithoff,
Legal Assistant, at Kellwood
headguarters. andee_althoff
@kellwood.com

DIVIDEND
REINVESTMENT PLAN

A dividend reinvestment plan
is offered to shareowners as

an affordable and convenient
way to increase your holdings
in Kellwood Company common
stock automatically. The plan
provides for the automatic rein-
vestment of your dividends and
voluntary cash payments.

For more infarmation on the
program, contact:

American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038
800-278-4353
www.amstock.com

For more information about
Kellwood, the Company can
be accessed via the Internet
at www.kellwood.com.

ANNUAL AND
10-K REPORTS

A copy of the Company's annual
report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission on Form
10-K is available to shareowners
without charge. Your written
request should be directed to:

Thomas H. Pollihan
Senior Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel

Keliwood Company

P.O. Box 14374

St. Louis, Missouri 63178
tom_poliihan@kellwood.com

Additional copies of the annual
report to shareowners are avail-
abfe by contacting the Corporate
Communications department

at the above address or at

the following e-mail address:
corp_communications
@kellwood.com

Stock Data

The commaon stock of Kellwoad
Company is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the
trading symbol of KWD.

INDEPENDENT
ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
800 Market Street '
St. Louis, Missouri 63101
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